
Traffic Advisory Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Traffic Advisory Panel to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.

Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Thursday, 1 November 2018

TIME: 11.45 am, or at the later rising of the Planning & Transportation
Regulatory Panel

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.

The role of the Traffic Advisory Panel is consultative. Decisions in respect of
items on the agenda will be made at a future Briefing of the Lead Member for
Planning & Sustainable Development, having considered the representations
and comments made at this meeting.

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence. 

2  Declarations of interest. 

3  Minutes of meeting held on 4th October 2018. (Pages 1 - 4)

4  Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street, 
Swinton. 

(Pages 5 - 78)

5  Yew Street and Norfolk Street, Salford. (Pages 79 - 92)

6  Lynton Road, Lowry Drive and Station Road, Pendlebury. (Pages 93 - 118)

7  Rooke Street, Thorp Street, Lansdale Street and Gilbert Street, 
Eccles. 

(Pages 119 - 142)

8  Any other business. 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602
Claire Edwards, Democratic Services E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 

4th October 2018

Meeting commenced:    12.45 p.m.
         “            ended:      1.20 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Antrobus, Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable Development
– in the Chair

Councillors Burch, Clarke, Dawson, Dickman, K. Garrido, Linden, Mashiter,
McIntyre, Morris and Warmisham

Parkgate Drive & Adjoining Streets, Swinton South 
Councillor Fletcher – Ward Councillor
Two local residents

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

The Chair welcomed those present and outlined the procedure for the meeting.  He explained that 
the role of the Traffic Advisory Panel is consultative and indicated that decisions in respect of the 
proposals to be considered would be made at a future Briefing of the Lead Member for Planning & 
Sustainable Development, having considered the report along with the representations and 
comments made at this meeting.

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Hamilton and Hunt.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 

The minutes of the meeting held on 6th September 2018 were agreed as a correct record.

4. IRVINE AVENUE / LEIGH ROAD, BOOTHSTOWN – TRO 2163

The Panel considered a report of the Strategic Director Place which detailed the objections that 
had been received in relation to a proposal to introduce a traffic regulation order (TRO) for ‘No 
Waiting At Any Time’ (double yellow lines) at the Irvine Avenue / Leigh Road junction in 
Boothstown.  The proposal had been put forward through the Worsley & Boothstown Community 
Committee to address concerns raised by the local community regarding parking at this junction 
which is currently restricting safe access for vehicles using this junction due to restricted visibility.  
Vehicles parking too close to the junction are also sometimes making it difficult for pedestrians to 
cross the junction.

The traffic regulation order to introduce the waiting restrictions was advertised on the 29th July 
2018 for a period of 21 days during which period four objections were received.  Following 
consideration of the objections, the members of the Highways Task Group agreed that an 
amended scheme be proposed which would achieve the objective of providing safe access for 
vehicles and pedestrians, but would reduce the lengths of double yellow lines and hence the 
effects on residential parking.  The new proposals were circulated to the four objectors, one of 
whom withdrew their objection, leaving three outstanding objections.

There were no members of the public in attendance at the meeting.

The Panel expressed general support regarding the amended scheme.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Traffic Advisory Panel – 4th October 2018 2
The Chair indicated that he was minded to approve the implementation of the amended scheme.

5. PARKGATE DRIVE AND ADJOINING STREETS, SWINTON SOUTH 

The Panel considered a report of the Strategic Director Place which detailed the objections that 
had been received regarding a proposal to introduce ‘No Stopping Monday to Friday 8.00 a.m. to 
5.00 p.m. on School Keep Clear markings’ to keep the area near the entrance to Grosvenor Road 
Primary School clear of vehicles at arrival and dispersal times, and ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ to 
prevent vehicles parking close to the junctions on Parkgate Drive.  The proposal was in response 
to a request from the Swinton & Pendlebury Highway Task Group with the intention of improving 
road safety at all times on Parkgate Drive near the entrance gate of Grosvenor Road Primary 
School and at the junctions.  It would also promote sustainable travel by making it easier for 
pedestrians to walk to and from the school, particularly when crossing at junctions.

Parkgate Drive, Collingwood Drive, Heathfield Drive and Barton Road provide a rear access to 
Grosvenor Road Primary School which creates a high demand for parking during pickup and drop 
off times, as well as significant pedestrian movements along Parkgate Drive.  The Panel 
established that the rear entrance was used in addition to the main entrance in order to encourage 
walking to school.  The report indicated that there was currently an advisory School Keep Clear 
marking only, installed on site without a permanent traffic regulation order, which was resulting in 
parents and residents parking on the School Keep Clear markings adjacent to the school gate 
without any enforcement.  The proposed restrictions would ensure that the junctions remained 
clear of parked vehicles, providing turning space, increased visibility to use the junction safely as 
well as assisting in the general safe movement of vehicles. The restrictions would also enable 
easier pedestrian movements along Parkgate Drive.

The Panel noted the background information provided in the report, together with the details of the 
objections that had been received and the responses that had been provided.

The Panel were informed of an additional objection that had been received by email which detailed 
issues in respect of the following –

 The proposals would lead to drivers parking where they can (further down Heathfield for 
example).  This would mean that vehicles would be at speed reaching Parkgate Drive 
which was likely to lead to an accident at some point.

 Drivers waiting in vehicles on Barton Road would not see children coming in bad weather.
 The proposed double yellow lines on the corners of Barton Road would cause the traffic to 

be bottle necked because cars would park on both sides of Barton Road which would make 
it difficult for the school bus from Springwood School to get out.

 Instead of limiting the parking by covering only part of drives in double yellow lines, there 
should be residents’ only parking or double yellow lines to the end of each of the cul-de-
sacs.

 The proposals would have a detrimental impact on road safety in the area.

Two objectors attended the meeting and raised the following issues –

 The proposals would result in a loss of parking spaces putting further pressure on parking 
provision in the area.

 Many of the residents live in multi car households.
 There is only one way in and out of Parkgate Drive.
 Some residents do not work during school holidays and would be unable to park near their 

homes.
 A residents’ parking scheme should be introduced.
 The parking situation has deteriorated further following the capacity of the school having 

been increased.
 There have been numerous confrontations over parking spaces in the area.

Page 2



Traffic Advisory Panel – 4th October 2018 3
 The behaviour of drivers at school drop off and pick up times was causing a risk to road 

safety.
 Road safety would be improved by restricting the number of vehicles travelling through the 

area.

Councillor Fletcher echoed the above issues and stated that the priority must be to ensure the 
safety of the children in the area.

The Panel were advised by the Highways Officer that the area did not meet the criteria for a 
residents’ parking scheme due to the majority of residents having off-street parking provision and a 
parking survey having indicated that, with the exception of approximately 30 minutes at school 
drop off and pick up times, there were no major parking issues during the remainder of the day.  
Other residents’ parking schemes in Swinton were in operation between 10.00 a.m. and 3.00 p.m. 
and such a scheme would not be of benefit to this particular area.

During the Panel debate, it was suggested that the school be approached with regard to the 
possibility of using the main entrance only, which was situated in a more suitable location, at drop 
off and pick up times.  The exploration of this suggestion was supported by Members of the Panel.

The Chair indicated that he was not prepared to make a decision regarding the proposed scheme 
at this time as he did not have sufficient evidence, in terms of the police being concerned about 
parking in the area, to do so.  He referred to the Highway Code which advises that drivers should 
not park within 10m of a junction, in respect of which action could be taken by the police should 
this be contravened.  In addition, he indicated that he would like an alternative way of dealing with 
the situation, in terms of the possibility of access via the main entrance to the school being 
encouraged, to be explored.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

1

  Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

ITEM NO. 

 
 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
 

TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 
 

1st November 2018 
 

 
Proposal to introduce new TRO limited waiting with permit holders parking restriction on 

Chorley Road and ‘residents parking areas’ on Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street, 
Swinton South, Salford, Order 2018 (TRO Ref No: 2131)

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
That the lead member for Strategic Planning consider the contents of this report and the 
deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a decision to amend the proposals. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
A. Chorley Road TRO Ref: 2114 
 

� A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to introduce limited waiting parking restrictions on 
Chorley Road was formally consulted with the Traffic Management Unit on 22nd 
September 2017 and no objections were received from TMU members. 

 
� The TRO was legally advertised on 16th November 2017 for 21 days. 

 
� This resulted in 19 returns being received from businesses and residents (15 letters of 

objections received from 9 properties and 3 letters of support to the proposals.) 
 

� As some residents along this section have objected to the proposal. The Swinton and 
Pendlebury Highways Task Group have indicated that the limited waiting should 
proceed, subject to TAP approval, and that the residents and business premises be 
offered permits to park within the Swinton Zone B parking area which had Task 
Group approval to be extended to include Beech Street and Broom Street. 

 
B: Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street. 
 

� A consultation exercise was carried out on 15th November 2017 to seek the Beech 
Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street residents view on this proposal. This extension 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

2

to an existing area wide resident parking permit scheme encompasses 3 additional 
streets and approximately 74 properties.  

 
� A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO Ref - 2131) to introduce Residents only parking 

restrictions on Beech Street, Broom Street & Ogden Street was formally consulted 
with the Traffic Management Unit on 4th December 2017 and no objections were 
received from TMU members. 

 
� A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO Ref - 2131) to introduce Residents only parking 

restrictions on Beech Street, Broom Street was legally advertised on 14th June 2018 
and four objections were received from the three properties which included petition 
containing 104 signatures from 67 households within the area. 
Chorley Road: 15 households (23 signatures) 
Beech Street:  14 households (18 signatures) 
Broom Street: 15 households (29 signatures) 
Ogden Street: 23 households (34 signatures) including signatures from 4 properties 
that are not included within the scheme area. 
 

Despite the findings of the initial informal consultation, it is acknowledged that there is a 
level of objection, raised by the local community to this proposal and these have been taken 
into consideration by suggesting amendments to the proposal. 
 
The suggested amendments to the proposal are included within this report. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
A request has been made to Urban Vision from the Swinton and Pendlebury Highway Task 
Group to introduce a Limited Waiting TRO on Chorley Road as well as a subsequent request 
to introduce a Residents Parking TRO on Beech Street, Broom Street and part of Ogden 
Street. 
 
Each Neighbourhood area in Salford is allocated a budget that can be used to fund highway 
issues based on local concerns. The proposal for limited waiting on Chorley Road and a 
Resident Permit Parking Scheme on Broom Street / Beech Street have both been identified in 
this way by members of the community and prioritised by the Swinton and Pendlebury 
Highways Task Group.  
 
There were a number of Highways Devolved Budget applications for schemes on Chorley 
Road in 2017, submitted from businesses on both sides of the road as well as a request for 
additional disabled parking to assist the delivery of the Community Based services at 
Critchley House. 

Chorley Road on the south eastern approach to Swinton town centre is fronted by a mixture 
of residential and businesses properties. Complaints have been received that all day parking 
by commuters is leading to parking difficulties for customers using local businesses on 
Chorley Road.  
 
To try to tackle this all-day parking problem a scheme was designed to introduce a limited 
waiting parking restriction on Chorley Road, preventing the all-day parking that currently 

Page 6



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

3

takes place and generate a turnover of spaces for visitors close to local shops and amenities, 
thereby improving the vitality of the local area. 
 
The Swinton and Pendlebury Highways Task Group considered initial feedback from the 
formal consultations and concluded that as residents had objected to this proposal, the 
affected Chorley Road residents could be included within the recently approved Residents 
Parking Scheme on Beech Street and Broom Street. 
 
The Highways Task Group also received a request to introduce a resident permit parking 
scheme in Beech Street, similar to that which is already in operation on the adjacent Bain 
Street. Residents indicated that long stay commuter parking was creating difficulties for 
them; the majority of properties in this area do not have any off street parking provision. 
 
A consultation exercise was carried out in November 2017, and included Beech Street, 
Broom Street and part of Ogden Street for the residents view on the proposal. All responses 
received were favourable with the exception of businesses at premises in Broom Street that 
raised concerns regarding the proposals.  
 
The request for a Residents Permit Parking scheme for Beech Street was made via a 
Highways Devolved Budget application in September 2017, signed by many residents on 
Beech Street. This scheme was prioritised by the Swinton and Pendlebury Highways Task 
Group. 

 
 
CONSIDERATION OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
All the letters\Emails are attached to this report at; 
 
Appendix 1- TRO 2114- Chorley Road 
 
Appendix 2- TRO 2131- Beech Street, Broom Street and part of Ogden Street. 
 
The following table summarises the general points raised by the objections to the Chorley 
Road proposal and provides the Urban Vision response:  
 
Item AGREE WITH SCHEME REPONSE 
1 Thank you for your letter I'm 

really pleased about the parking 
as by business has drop 50 
present over the last few years .I 
 put this down the town hall staff 
parking all day outside my shop  
(Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 5A) 
 

Noted with Thanks. 

2 I am currently in favour of the 
parking restrictions as parking is 
currently ridiculous with all 
council workers parking outside 

The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents and businesses to 
obtain permits for Swinton Zone B whilst removing 
the long stay parking. 

Page 7



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

4

my property for the majority of 
the day.  
 (Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 5A) 
 

 

3. Very happy with the proposal 
(received by phone) 
 

Noted with Thanks. 

 
Item OBJECTION  REPONSE 
1 I have been informed that the 

road is possibly going to be 
made a minimum stay parking 
zone.  
I must object to this, as I am a 
resident and have lived on this 
road with my partner for over 10 
years now. If this does become 
limited parking, then where 
would my partner and I park our 
cars during the day?  
 
We bought the property years 
ago with the understanding we 
had parking available, if the plan 
does go ahead, then do we get 
residents parking permits, as the 
side streets to Chorley Road 
were made limited stay parking 
earlier this year and all the 
residents were given permits,  
 
I would assume this would be 
the case for my partner and I, as 
otherwise where would we park 
our cars?  
(Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 6A) 
 

The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B whilst removing the long stay 
parking. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The public highway is provided and maintained at 
public expense for the passage and repassage of 
traffic. On street parking is tolerated in some 
circumstances, but must be regulated in others for 
road safety, capacity or other highway management 
reasons. However, the suggested amendment to the 
proposal will allow Chorley Road residents to 
obtain permits for Swinton Zone B. 
 
 
If the vehicle is kept at the property within the 
zone, permits can be obtained. A visitor permit can 
also be obtained. 

2 I write to you in this instance to 
formally register my objection as 
the owner of 76 Chorley Road to 
the proposed parking changes to 
Chorley Road as they will 
basically leave me with no place 
to park, or indeed visitors or 
tradespeople.  
 
Further to this I would like 
details of who at Salford Council 

The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B whilst removing the long stay 
parking. A visitor permit can also be obtained. 
 
 
 
 
 
This is not a highway or traffic matter and should 
be taken up with the Valuation Office/Council Tax 

Page 8



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

5

to email regarding the fact that 
my house despite having no off 
road parking facilities or gardens 
is paying the same council tax as 
the other 5 properties in the row 
which all have off road parking/ 
garages and large rear gardens 
and are thus far more valuable 
than my property. The Valuation 
Office have been notified of the 
vast difference in value this lack 
of facilities represents but refuse 
to act in a Lawful manner and 
treat the situation seriously, 
before notification the Council 
could have argued that it had 
made a simple mistake in the 
original drive by valuation, 
however now the matter is more 
serious as having been notified 
that they have made a serious 
mistake they are still demanding 
Band B Council Tax for a 
property that is clearly only a 
Band A value, and thus are now 
knowingly demanding and 
taking money under false 
pretences.  
 
On one final linked note, the 
residents of this row of 6 houses 
have been refused resident only 
parking bays due to the 
existence of aforementioned rear 
facilities which I do not have 
and so I would also like contact 
details for whoever in the 
council deals with assigning 
parking bays as again clearly 76 
Chorley Road should have the 
space immediately to the front of 
the house as a resident only bay.  
Thank you in advance for your 
help in these matters.  
(Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 6A) 
 

office. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. 
 
 
 
 
The amendments will reduce the extents of existing 
double yellow lines to increase spaces on Chorley 
Road, however, those that remain are provided to 
maintain visibility and turning space at junctions. 
The provision of a permit does not guarantee a 
space outside any particular property but enables 
permit holders to park within the zone covered by 
the scheme. 
 
 

3 I strongly oppose the parking 
restriction you plan to put in 
place. 

The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B whilst removing the long stay 

Page 9



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

6

 
My car is often parked outside 
my property during the day 
especially during school 
holidays. 
 
The side streets are always 
blocked with none residential 
cars and vans 
 
I pay my rates and my road tax, 
this is why I strongly disagree 
with your proposals. (Letter 
attached in objection Appendix 1 
(page no. 7A) 
 

parking. 
 
 
 
 
 
The side streets will be restricted to permit holders 
during the operational hours. 
 

4 We are a small business with 
part time workers, managers and 
painters that required their cars 
for their job so public transport 
is not an option. We are open 
office hours and will need 
parking for more than 2 hours at 
a time.  This will lead to us 
having to move premises. .  
(Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 7A -8A) 
 

This request has been made by a number of 
commercial premises on Chorley Road to remove 
long stay parking and provide a turnover of spaces 
for customers. The suggested amendment to the 
proposal will allow Chorley Road businesses to 
obtain permits for Swinton Zone B whilst removing 
the long stay parking. 
 

 
5 

 
I write regarding the above 
proposed limited waiting 
parking restrictions on Chorley 
Road, Swinton South. I have 
examined the plans and I know 
the area well. I wish to object 
strongly to the request made by 
the Swinton & Pendlebury 
Highway Task Group.  
   
I have been working in Swinton 
since 2013 and know from 
personal experience just how 
difficult it has become to find a 
convenient car parking space 
close to my place of work. This 
has been compounded in recent 
years by the introduction of 
Permit Holder and limited 
waiting parking restrictions in 
nearby Bain Street.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The restrictions on Chorley Road have been 
requested by a number of businesses on Chorley 
Road primarily to increase the turnover of spaces 
for customers to those premises. The suggested 
amendment to the proposal will allow Chorley 
Road businesses to obtain permits for Swinton 
Zone B whilst removing the long stay parking. 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

7

   
Furthermore, there is no need for 
these kind of parking restrictions 
on what is essentially a 
commercial stretch of Chorley 
Road where the only identified 
need is for local business’s.  
   
The proposed restrictions are 
particularly ill-considered:  
The nearest pay and display car 
park is situated some 0.3miles 
away at Swinton Gateway which 
is totally unsatisfactory.  
   
As an alternative to this 
proposal, I would support the 
construction of a new public Car 
Park at the bottom of Bain Street 
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/
@53.5092382,-
2.336391,3a,75y,86.97h,77.12t/d
ata=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1sQPiwHsE
4jgFpq2FC-
uALIQ!2e0!7i13312!8i6656  
 
I would like to request the 
following information under the 
provisions of the Freedom of 
Information Act:  
1. A copy of the Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) conducted as 
part of the consideration of the 
parking measures.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Copies of all documents 
related to the consideration of 
the findings of the EIA.  
 
 
3. Copies of all papers in which 
Councillor’s or officials have 
considered the case for the 
introduction of parking 

 
The restrictions on Chorley Road have been 
requested by a number of businesses on Chorley 
Road primarily to increase the turnover of spaces 
for customers to those premises. 
 
 
 
Pay and display is also available at Civic Centre 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public parking is already available to serve the 
Swinton area and further parking provision is not 
proposed at this time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. An Equality Impact Assessment is not 
considered necessary as this proposal does not have 
a negative impact on any particular group of 
people. The statutory processing of a Traffic 
Regulation Order enables people to raise objections 
to the proposal in the way that you have done. 
These objections will, if not amended or rescinded 
by negotiation, be considered by the City Councils’ 
Traffic Advisory Panel who will make 
recommendations after considering the objections.  

2. See Item 1. 

 

3. Please find attached two Highways Devolved 
Budget Applications with regards to the 
introduction of the limited waiting on Chorley 
Road that were considered by the Swinton and 
Pendlebury Highways Task Group. I also attach 

Page 11



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

8

restrictions on Chorley Road, 
Swinton South.  
 
 
 
 
4. Copies of all papers in which 
alternate traffic management 
schemes have been considered, 
including the outcome of such 
considerations.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Copies of papers prepared by 
Swinton & Pendlebury Highway 
Task Group in relation to the 
consultation exercise, the 
recommendations there from and 
the considerations thereof.  
 
6. All other papers in which the 
parking restriction in Chorley 
Road, Swinton South have been 
considered, either directly or 
indirectly 
(Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 8 & 9) 
 

copies of the signed decisions record following the 
considerations of the Highways Task Group of the 
two applications. The meetings are not formally 
minuted. 

4. The only alternative scheme to have been 
considered was with regards to the operational 
times, duration of stay and return period of the 
limited waiting. The proposals were formed after 
two separate applications were considered by the 
Highways Task Group. Now that the objection 
period is over, all representations to the proposal 
will be considered and changes may be considered 
as part of this process and will be reported to the 
Traffic Advisory Panel. 

5. The only consultation carried out on this 
proposal is the formal advert and letter drop to 
which you have raised your representations. As 
stated previously the representations are now being 
considered before presenting a report to the Traffic 
Advisory Panel. 

6. Please find attached the Delegated approval and 
TMU report relating to this proposal. No other 
parking restriction schemes are currently being 
progressed at Chorley Road and all the information 
relevant to this proposal is attached. 

 
 

6 I have received your letter and 
would like to strongly object to 
this proposal.  
I work on Chorley Road and 
there are very few spaces and a 
lot of restrictions now which is 
hard enough.  
I feel there is no need for this 
kind of parking restrictions on 
what is a commercial stretch and 
is mostly local business’s.  
(Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 8A -10A) 
 
  

 
 
 
This request has been made by a number of 
commercial premises on Chorley Road to remove 
long stay parking and provide a turnover of spaces 
for customers. Long stay parking is available on the 
Council operated car parks. The suggested 
amendment to the proposal will allow Chorley 
Road businesses to obtain permits for Swinton 
Zone B whilst removing the long stay parking. 

7 I refer to the above proposed 
parking restrictions on Chorley 
Road. 

The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. 

Page 12



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

9

As a resident living on Chorley 
Road this is a constant 
nightmare.  I can never park my 
car outside my house on the 
main road because of commuters 
parking there from morning until 
early evening (they are mostly 
staff from the Town Hall! ).  If I 
leave the house in the morning 
then upon my return have to 
park in a side street until the cars 
have gone.  I agree with having 
parking restrictions because of 
this inconsiderate parking, but I 
want to know what will be done 
for the residents.  Surely you 
will be issuing parking permits 
for us to park at any time.  If not, 
then I cannot imagine where we 
will park. Please consider the 
residents when making any 
decisions. Put yourselves in our 
shoes. 
(Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 11A) 
 

8 I object to the proposed order on 
the following grounds. 
 
It would prevent the residents of 
Chorley Road from parking in 
front of their homes. This would 
then cause further knock –on 
parking problems in the area. 
The order takes no account of 
and doesn’t even acknowledge 
the many household occupiers 
on Chorley Road and the direct. 
Significant impact it would have 
on them. 
 
Personally, it would have a 
devastating effect on both 
myself and my son who lives 
with me. We are both disabled 
and hold blue badge parking 
permits. In our circumstances, 
we need to park as close as 
possible to the house. This is a 
necessity, not simply a 

 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The national concessionary scheme for Blue 
Badges permits vehicles displaying a blue badge to 
park without time limit in on street limited waiting 
bays. 
 

Page 13



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

10 

preference. We would be 
prevented from doing so. 
 
My late husband and myself 
have lived in this house for 27 
years with 24 hour unrestricted 
parking available at the front. As 
we do not have any alternative 
parking available, the proposal 
would force my son and myself 
to move our cars Mon – Fri 
between the hours of 11am – 
4pm with all the associated 
problems of trying to find 
parking spaces for the full period 
in an already heavily parked 
area. In actual fact, we would 
not be able to return our cars to 
in front of our home before 
6.30pm at the earliest, as we 
have found through experience 
because the spaces are quickly 
taken. Then after that time the 
local taxis park in front whilst 
waiting between pick-ups. 
 
Since the petrol station opposite 
closed more and more cars are 
parking in its forecourt during 
working hours. I understand that 
the petrol station will be 
reopening, which will then add 
to the parking problem in our 
area. 
 
Neither my son or myself (I am 
in my 80th year) would be able 
physically to comply with this 
order and the inconvenience and 
stress would be terrible for both 
of us. 
 
To reduce impact of the 
proposal, I asked urban vision of 
it would be possible to have 24 
hour resident parking permits in 
front of our home and was told 
that they are not permitted on a 
main road. 
 

 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Resident Parking schemes that are in operation 
across the City are primarily in place to control all 
day parking by commuters, therefore 24 hour 
control is not required or justified. The availability 
of relaxed parking controls during the veneing and 
weekends is viewed as a benefit to many residents 
to accommodate their visitors during these hours. 
 

Page 14



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

11 

The consequence of the order 
being passed would mean for us 
that we would be forced to either 
dispose of our cars thus losing 
our independence or have to 
move from our home to one with 
parking availability. Neither is 
feasible. Neither of us are in 
health position to move, or 
should we have to do so. 
 
I was born and have lived and 
worked in Swinton for over 65 
years in total. I was widowed 
earlier this year and I am 
extremely worried by this 
proposal, which if passed would 
effectively force my son and 
myself out of our home at this 
late stage of my life. 
 
We would have to take legal 
advice to challenge this proposal 
if it proceeds. Apart from the 
significant impact on us, it 
would significantly devalue our 
property. Other residents are 
also affected. (Letter attached in 
objection Appendix 1 (page no. 
11A – 13A) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Should a proposal be taken forward, there is the 
opportunity to challenge the process through the 
Courts. This information will be contained within 
the Notice of Making of the Order. 

9 I object to this proposed order on 
the grounds outline below. 
 
The proposal would prevent the 
residents of Chorley Road from 
parking outside their own homes 
from 11am – 4pm 5 days per 
week which would mean that 
during this period alternative 
parking would have to be found. 
 
Even without the proposed 
Order it is difficult to park 
outside our home before 6.30 
pm. So a return time could not 
be assured. 
 
I am disabled as is my elderly 
mother – we both hold blue 

 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The national concessionary scheme for Blue 
Badges permits vehicles displaying a blue badge to 

Page 15



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

12 

badge parking permits. My 
health is poor and I would not 
physically be able to comply 
with the order neither by the 
timing nor by being able to find 
somewhere close by to park in 
this heavily parking- congested 
built up area. Nor would my 
mother. 
 
If the order was to be passed it 
would mean that both my 
mother and myself would have 
to sell our cars which would take 
away our independence or move 
to a house with car parking 
spaces. Under our circumstances 
we should not have to have 
either of these options forced 
upon us especially taking into 
account my mother’s age and 
that she has lived in no. 32 since 
1991 along with my late father 
who died recently. 
The order does not seem to 
address the impact on the 
household occupiers on Chorley 
Road and I would entreat Urban  
Vision to do so. 
  
Attached in objection Appendix 
1 (page no. 14A) 
 

park without time limit in on street limited waiting 
bays. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. 
 

10 1. the proposal affects me in 
three ways: 
 
a) as executor of my late father’s 
estate, it is my duty to protect 
the estate and related property 
rights, which includes his share 
of the freehold on – Chorley 
Road. 
b) my mother and brother live at 
– Chorley Road. I have read and 
support her objections letter 
dated 6 December. As they will 
be prevented from parking there, 
they will not be able to continue 
live there with their cars. They 
will not be able to go out 

 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain a permit for 
(Swinton Zone B) 
 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain a permit for 
(Swinton Zone B) and the national concessionary 
scheme for Blue Badges permits vehicles 
displaying a blue badge to park without time limit 
in on street limited waiting bays. 
 
 

Page 16



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

13 

shopping and return, and to drive 
to regular hospital and other 
medical visits. They will need 
external support to live their day 
to day loves. Generally I will not 
be able to offer it due to work 
commitments. However some of 
the burden will inevitably come 
to me. My mother is – and in 
failing health. My brother’s 
health is very poor neither is in a 
position not to have the ability to 
park close to their property. The 
council’s public sector equality 
duty requires it to have due 
regard to residents protected 
characteristics such as disability 
and age and the impact these 
proposals will have on them. 
And not to discriminate 
including indirectly. Has there 
been any equality impact 
assessment carried out here? If 
not. Why not? 
c)   
Attached in objection Appendix 
1 (page no. 15A- 18A)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An Equality Impact Assessment is not considered 
necessary as this proposal does not have a negative 
impact on any particular group of people. The 
statutory processing of a Traffic Regulation Order 
enables people to raise objections to the proposal in 
the way that you have done. These objections will, 
if not amended or rescinded by negotiation, be 
considered by the City Councils’ Traffic Advisory 
Panel who will make recommendations after 
considering the objections. 

11 I am writing to object to the 
proposed limited waiting 
parking restriction on Chorley 
road, Swinton South. I think this 
a ridiculous idea and absolutely 
no consideration has been made 
for the businesses and residents 
that live on that stretch and also 
on the roads just off it on Bain 
Street and Beech Street. 
 
Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 18A – 
19A) 
 

This request has been made by a number of 
commercial premises on Chorley Road to remove 
long stay parking and provide a turnover of spaces 
for customers. Long stay parking is available on the 
Council operated car parks. 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents and businesses to 
obtain permits for Swinton Zone B. 
 

12 I would like to object the 
parking restrictions on Chorley 
road under the grounds of I am a 
home owner and will not be able 
to park outside my property for 

The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. 
 

Page 17



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

14 

over a certain amount of time.  

Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 19A) 
 

13 Regarding the above proposal 
can I please request all the 
houses that are concerned in this 
order are issued a permit to 
allow all day parking as many of 
the houses that front Chorley 
Road have no other parking 
option and unlike the businesses 
which may be affected inhabit 
their spaces up to 24 hours per 
day.  
 
Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 19A -20A) 
 

The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. 
 

14 I am writing to oppose the plans 
to put in place 2hr parking on 
Chorley rd. I own 2 property’s 
58 and 58a at the moment I park 
outside my property at night for 
insurance purposes. If there is 2 
hr parking I will after move my 
car every morning 
Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 20A) 
 

The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. Furthermore the time restriction 
will not be in operation in the evening or weekend 

15 I’m very concerned about where 
I’m expected to park if the 
limited waiting parking is put in 
place. I only work part time so 
are home sometimes when my 
eldest 2 Children are in school. I 
have nowhere to park my car 
other than on the main road 
Letter attached in objection 
Appendix 1 (page no. 21A) 
 

The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. 
 

 
The following table summarises the general points raised by the objections to the Beech 
Street/Broom Street proposal and provides the Urban Vision response: 
 
Item OBJECTION  REPONSE 
1 
 
 

Petition with 104 signature 
from (67 households from 
Beech St, Broom St, Ogden 

 
 
 

Page 18



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

15 

 
 - 
 
 
 
 
 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 

Street and Chorley Road) 
Agree with the council’s 
proposal to introduce residents 
parking permits along Broom, 
Ogden and Beech Streets; 
 
Disagree with providing 
Chorley Road resident, their 
visitors and businesses with 
parking permits along Broom, 
Ogden and Beech streets but 
not Chorley Road;  
 
Request the Council to modify 
their proposals so that parking 
permits are also issued for use 
along Chorley Road. Meeting 
businesses and Critchley 
House requests for more 
parking for their needs should 
not be done to the detriment of 
residents; 
Letter attached in objection 
Appendix  2(page no. 5B -12B) 
 

 
Noted 
 
 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B which will also include the bays 
along Chorley Road. 
 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B which will also include the bays 
along Chorley Road. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.  The decision to prevent 
Chorley Road residents from 
parking in front of their homes 
during the hours of 9am to 4pm 
Mon to Friday and force us 
into the above streets by giving 
us parking permits in the said 
streets is unfair both to 
ourselves and to the residents 
of those streets and can only 
cause further parking chaos in 
the area. 
 
My son and myself both have 
blue badges and we have been 
advised that we will be able to 
park in front of our home 24 
hourly with our badges 
displayed. 
However this will not fully 
solve our parking problem. 
--- 
This plan is discriminatory as 
its impact penalises the 
residents of Chorley Road. By 

The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The national concentionary scheme for Blue 
Badges permits vehicles displaying a blue badge to 
park without time limit in on street limited waiting 
bays. 
 
 
 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain permits for 
Swinton Zone B. 

Page 19



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

16 

forcing us to park away from 
our homes during the restricted 
hours in order to allow non-
residents to park for 2hr 
periods at a time in our place. 
 
Letter attached in objection 
Appendix  2(page no. 12B- 
14B) 
 

 

3 The decision to prevent 
Chorley Road residents from 
parking in front of their homes 
during the hours of 9am to 4pm 
Mon to Friday and force us 
into the above streets by giving 
us parking permits in the said 
streets is unfair both to 
ourselves and to the residents 
of those streets and can only 
cause further parking chaos in 
the area. 
 
My son and myself both have 
blue badges and we have been 
advised that we will be able to 
park in front of our home 24 
hourly with our badges 
displayed. 
However this will not fully 
solve our parking problem. 
 
On the occasions we move our 
cars for medical appointments 
etc. during the 9am to 4pm 
period we will not be able to 
return to park in front of our 
home as we know from 
experience and we would then 
have to use our parking permits 
in the side streets. It would 
however, be very unfair of us 
to park in front of a resident’s 
home as they turn would then 
have to find an alternative 
space and the parking situation 
could have a domino effect. 
 
Consequently, we have to park 
further from our home and 

The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain a permit for 
(Swinton Zone B) and enable them to park within 
the bays on Chorley Road. 
 
 
 
 
 
The permit scheme will remove the all-day parking 
that currently takes place in these areas.  
 
 
The national concentionary scheme for Blue 
Badges permits vehicles displaying a blue badge to 
park without time limit in on street limited waiting 
bays. 
 
 
 
 
 
This situation should be improved as the current all 
day commuter parking will be removed from the 
area. 
 
 
 
 
 
It is accepted that property owners, without their 
own private parking provision, may have to park 
elsewhere other than outside their own property. 
The removal of the current commuter all day 
parking will increase the availability of spaces.  
 
 
 
The removal of the current commuter all day 
parking will increase the availability of spaces, but 

Page 20



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

17 

with our disabilities that would 
cause difficulties especially 
when we have shopping to 
carry. We would then have to 
watch and wait for the spaces 
in front of our house to become 
vacant (usually not before 6.30 
pm at the earliest) again as we 
know from experience. 
 
This will be very stressful to 
myself as I am nearing eighty 
years of age and to my son as 
we both have health and 
mobility issues. 
 
This plan is discriminatory as 
its impact penalises the 
residents of Chorley Road. By 
forcing us to park away from 
our homes during the restricted 
hours in order to allow non-
residents to park for 2hr 
periods at a time in our place. 
 
It is both unreasonable and 
unfair and the predictable 
outcome will be greater 
parking problems and 
inconvenience to all residents 
in the area who will be 
significantly disadvantaged. 
 
I would therefore, urge Salford 
City Council to please put ALL 
ITS RESIDENTS INTERESTS 
first and foremost when 
dealing with parking problem 
in our area. 
 
Letter attached in objection 
Appendix  2(page no. 14B – 
16B) 
 

no specific space is reserved for permit holders or 
property owners. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road residents to obtain a permit for 
(Swinton Zone B) and enable them to park within 
the bays on Chorley Road and should be viewed as 
a benefit to the residents as the long stay parking 
will be regulated. 
 
 
 
The scheme is attempting to balance the 
requirements of the businesses and residents as well 
as controlling the long stay parking in the area. 

4 1. I agree with parking permits 
for residents of these three 
streets for use on these three 
streets. There is universal 
residential support for this. 
Many people park here all day 

Noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

18 

who work elsewhere. This 
includes, ironically, Salford 
City Council staff, who 
presumably either cannot 
afford to or prefer not to pay to 
park at the Civic Centre, 
following the Council 
introducing parking charges for 
its staff some years ago. The 
residential parking problem is 
therefore materially caused by 
the Council itself. 
 
2. I disagree with giving 
permits here to residents and 
businesses of Chorley Road. It 
is unfair on them and unfair on 
residents of the above three 
streets to not give Chorley 
Road occupiers permits for use 
along Chorley Road. 
 
3. I raised various objections 
and points around the previous 
Chorley Road proposals in my 
consultation response dated 
7.12.17. I reiterate those. 
 
4. The Chorley Road parking 
proposals stated the reason was 
to prevent commuters parking 
for long periods in the working 
week, which was reducing 
parking for visitors to shops 
and facilities. Unfortunately 
that proposal was and remains 
flawed, ill-considered and 
disproportionate. The 
Council’s statement of reasons, 
the legal basis on which it is 
being made, were to preclude 
commuter all day parking. A 
legitimate aim. It did not have 
the stated objective of 
preventing residential 
occupiers of Chorley Road 
from continuing to park there 
beyond 2 hours. Whereas that 
is precisely its effect. That 
proposal was further flawed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road businesses and residents to 
obtain permits for Swinton Zone B which will 
include the bays on Chorley Road. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The current proposal will remove all day parking 
that takes place at present, whilst providing 
additional flexibility for residents and their visitors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

19 

and ill thought out in that it did 
not set out any proposal where 
residents would park beyond 2 
hours in the week. 
 
5. Many objections were sent 
to the Council, which asked for 
parking permits along Chorley 
Road. The Highways Task 
Group (councillors) ignored 
these, in a meeting without 
minutes and for which no 
official reasons are 
documented. The Council did 
not place notices about the 
current Broom/Beech/Ogden St 
proposals along Chorley Road 
to make Chorley Road 
occupiers aware of their being 
proposed to have permits only 
along Broom, Beech and 
Ogden St. Unless the matter is 
rectified by the Traffic 
Advisory Panel, there is likely 
to be legal grounds for 
challenge here. Including the 
consultation not being properly 
conducted and considered and 
the Council so far hasn’t 
properly considered residents 
and occupiers interests as 
required under s.45 Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984. 
And there’s scant documentary 
evidence to substantiate its 
decision-making to date. 
 
6. In one of the Council’s 
documents, undated, it records 
at paragraph 8.4 as follows: 
Councillor Heather Fletcher 
replied: 
I agree with this proposal 
regarding Chorley Road and 
limited parking time. 
It would benefit many of my 
elderly constituents who visit 
Critchley House day Centre 
who 
currently find it difficult to 

 
 
 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road businesses and residents to 
obtain permits for Swinton Zone B which will 
include the bays on Chorley Road. 
 
 
 
 
The amended proposals will be advertised in the 
local press and on the Councils Website. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

20 

park near the Day Centre due 
to cars being parked there all 
day 
In 'Highway Task Group' 
meeting discussion (10.10.17): 
If residents object to this 
proposal; then affected 
Residents to this scheme may 
get parking 
permit on Beech Street or 
Broom Street (proposed 
resident parking permit scheme 
2018) 
Paradoxically, the document 
states there are no “equal 
opportunities” considerations. 
The Council has not complied 
with the Public Sector Equality 
Duty, including to carry out an 
Equalities Impact Assessment. 
Yet clearly, the age and 
disability issues surrounding 
Critchley House service users 
was a relevant factor for its 
proposals (see also paragraph 7 
below). 
 
7.The Council’s statement of 
reasons for the Chorley Road 
proposal states unrestricted 
parking there is being used by 
commuters and reducing 
parking for local business and 
services “including a dentist 
practice and Critchley House 
which provides services to 
elderly, disabled and 
vulnerable people.” The 
Highways Devolved Budget 
Funding Request states it is 
“To provide a needed facility 
for the increased number of 
infirm people who regularly 
require to attend the centre and 
are in poor health with walking 
difficulties, but are not classed 
as disabled.” 
 
Critchley House add “this 
request will become more 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

21 

important if our medium term 
a plan to expand the building 
comes to fruition.” 
 
8. The statement of reasons are 
flawed as they do not recognise 
parking is materially also by 
residents. Also there are two 
dental practices along Chorley 
Road. Both have their own car 
parking. Critchley House has 
three on road disabled bays. It 
is unfair to seek to provide 
more parking for Critchley 
House to expand their services 
and to cater for businesses at 
the expense of residents. Each 
of which knew what the 
parking situation was when 
opening their business/service. 
Chorley Road parking has been 
unrestricted for decades. There 
is substantial parking in and 
around Swinton Precinct 
already, which visitors to 
Chorley Road shops and 
amenities can use. 
 
9. The decision by the 
Councillors on the Highways 
Task Group was to give 
Chorley Road occupiers 
permits along these three 
streets, but not Chorley Road. 
That is what is contained in 
these latest proposals. This is 
similarly ill considered, unfair 
and disproportionate. There is 
universal local opposition to 
this part of the plan. A petition 
has been signed by 104 local 
people. The proportionate and 
fair solution is to give eligible 
Chorley Road residents and 
occupiers permits for use along 
Chorley Road. 
 
10. That way, the objectives 
contained in the Council’s 
statement of reasons in both 

 
 
 
 
 
It is not necessary for the Councils, as Highway 
Authority to provide residents with on street 
parking provision.  
 
 
The disabled bays on Chorley Road are for general 
use and not specifically for Critchley House. 
This proposal does not provide additional parking 
for Critchley House but attempts to generate a 
churn of the available space for the competing 
demands in the area. 
It is not necessary for the Councils, as Highway 
Authority to provide residents with on street 
parking provision. 
 
 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road businesses and residents to 
obtain permits for Swinton Zone B which will 
include the bays on Chorley Road. 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road businesses and residents to 
obtain permits for Swinton Zone B which will 
include the bays on Chorley Road. 
 
 
Noted. 
 
 

Page 25



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

22 

proposals will be met, to 
prevent commuters parking 
along these four streets all day 
in the week. These proposals 
should not be used to unfairly 
prevent residents parking in 
front of their own properties on 
Chorley Road and not to 
unfairly increase parking 
congestion on Broom, Ogden 
and Beech St. The latter being 
entirely contradictory to the 
aim of reducing parking 
problems long these three 
streets. 
 
Additional points. 
 
11. Please consider increasing 
the restricted hours from 9 – 5. 
 
12. The middle and Beech 
Street sides of Ogden Street are 
include bot not the Worsley 
Road section. These will 
congestion there. Residents 
there point out many visitors to 
the Humphrey Booth Centre 
park at that Ogden Street end 
due to parking charges at the 
centre. There is no explanation 
why this end is not included. 
Surely it should be so as not to 
cause increased parking 
problems for residents there. 
 
13. Garden along Ogden Street 
which residents say was 
introduced to restrict traffic 
from cutting through from the 
main roads. Some have 
suggested one might be 
removed, so as to increase the 
number of parking spaces. I’m 
informed this was raised 
previously with the council but 
not taken forward. 
 
Letter attached in objection 
Appendix  2(page no. 16B – 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The current operational hours match the current 
Swinton Zone B area and successfully remove all 
day parking from the existing areas. 
This can be considered as part of a separate HDB 
submission rather than an addition to this proposal 
which will require surveys to assess the degree of 
the problem. 
 
Visitor parking to the Humphrey Booth Centre may 
not be similar to the all-day parking that has been 
observed in Beech Street etc. 
 
This can be considered as part of a separate HDB 
application rather than add on to this proposal. 
The initial request was from Beech Street and the 
proposal has been extended to Broom Street 
 
 
There are no proposals at present to amend the 
current arrangements to provide increased parking 
provision. This can be requested via a HDB 
application. 

Page 26



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

23 

19B) 
 

Inq 1 I came to know that, my 
property 36 Chorley Road has 
not been listed to get the free 
resident’s parking permit. 
However, I would like to let 
you know that, I am running 
the restaurant downstairs and I 
live at the flat above and I 
haven’t got parking spaces to 
park during the day.  
 
Therefore, I would like to 
know the reason why my 
property is not eligible for the 
residents parking permit. Also, 
I hereby request you to look 
upon the matter and help me 
out to get the free parking 
permit.  
 
Letter attached in objection 
Appendix  2(page no. 19B) 
 

This property is now added in the amended 
proposal. 
 
 

Inq 2 Caller is concerned that his 
property is not included. Letter 
attached in objection Appendix  
2(page no. 19B – 20B) 
 
 

This property is now added in the amended 
proposal. 
 

Inq. 3 If it is the authority’s aim to 
discourage commuted parking 
from Chorley road, this order is 
ill considered. It is displacing 
those who live and work on 
Chorley Road, and who 
currently park on Chorley 
Road, into side streets, which 
are already filled with Resident 
Parking. 
 
We were displaced from 
parking in front of our property 
by a Road Traffic circa 1980. 
You now propose to exclude 
our employees from parking 
anywhere along Chorley Road. 
This is surely discrimination. 
 

The restrictions on Chorley Road have been 
requested by a number of businesses on Chorley 
Road primarily to increase the turnover of spaces 
for customers to those premises 
 
Public parking is already available to serve the 
Swinton area. 
 
 
 
 
The suggested amendment to the proposal will 
allow Chorley Road businesses to obtain permits 
for Swinton Zone B whilst removing the long stay 
parking. 

Page 27



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

24 

Letter attached in objection 
Appendix  2(page no. 20B- 
21B) 
 

 
 

 
CONSIDERATION OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
A. Chorley Road Limited Waiting TRO Ref: 2114 
 
The Council may consider the following options; 
 

1. Abandon the scheme. 
2. Overrule the objections and approve the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) as 

advertised. 
3. Amend the scheme after considering objections to include resident permit parking on 

Chorley Road as well as limited waiting. 
 
B. Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street. 
 
The Council may consider the following options; 
 

1. Abandon the scheme and leave the situation as it currently is with no waiting 
restrictions. 

2. Overrule the objections and approve the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) as 
advertised. 

3. Amend the scheme after considering objections to include resident permit parking on 
Chorley Road. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is proposed to amend the scheme as follows: 
 
Revocation of:  
 
TRO 26/2/344 
The Greater Manchester County, (Chorley Road and Pendlebury Road, Swinton) (Prohibition 
of Waiting) (County) Order 1984. 
 
Schedule: 
Chorley Road, Pendlebury, South west side from a point 15 metres south east of the easterly 
kerbline of Pendlebury Road in a north westerly direction for a distance of 30 metres.+ 
 
TRO 814  
The City of Salford (Bain Street, Swinton) (Prohibition of waiting) Order 1995 
Schedule: 
Chorley Road, South westerly side, from a point 15 metres north west of the north westerly 
kerbline of Bain Street in a south easterly direction for a distance of 34 metres. 

Page 28



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

25 

 
TRO 525 
The City of Salford (Chorley Road and Beech Street, Swinton) Prohibition of waiting and 
(peak hour loading / Unloading Restrictions Order, 1989 
Schedule: 
Chorley Road, South west side, from a point 15 metres north west of the north westerly 
kerbline of Beech Street, in a South easterly direction to a point 15 metres south east of the 
south easterly kerbline of Beech Street. 
 
TRO 26/2/497 
The City of Salford (A6 Chorley Road and Broom Street, Swinton) (Prohibition of Waiting) 
and peak hour Loading / Unloading Restrictions) Order, 1988 
Schedule: 
Chorley Road, west side, from the northerly kerbline of Broom Street in a northerly direction 
for a distance of 15 metres. 
 
And Introduce new TRO-  
 
Schedule: 1 
Prohibition of waiting- No loading /unloading between 7.30am to 9.30am and 4.00pm to 
6.30pm on Monday to Saturday inclusive 
Road Name Side Details 
Chorley 
Road 

South west side From a point 5 metres south east of the south 
easterly kerbline of Pendlebury Road in a north 
westerly direction for a distance of 15 metres in a 
north westerly direction 

Chorley 
Road 

South west side from a point 10 metres north west of the north 
westerly kerbline of Beech Street, in a South 
easterly direction to a point 10 metres south east 
of the south easterly kerbline of Beech Street. 

Chorley 
Road 

South west side From the northerly kerbline of Broom Street in a 
northerly direction for a distance of 10 metres. 

 
Schedule: 2 
No Waiting at Any Time 
Road Name Side Details 
Chorley 
Road 

South west side From a point 16 metres south eastern extended 
kerbline of Pendlebury Road for a distance of 14 
metres in a south easterly direction 

Chorley 
Road 

South west side from a point 10 metres north west of the north 
westerly kerbline of Bain Street in a south 
easterly direction to a point 10 metres south east 
of the south easterly kerbline of Bain Street. 

  
Schedule: 3 
Limited Waiting Parking Places   
Operative 9.00am to 4.00pm, Monday to Friday waiting limited to 2 hours, No return within 
2 hours, Exemption for vehicles Displaying a valid Residents or Visitors Parking Permit 
(ZONE B) 
 

Page 29



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

26 

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 

Parts of road authorised to be 
used as a limited waiting 
parking place 

 

Class of 
Vehicle 

Manner of standing 
in the limited 
waiting parking 
place  

Days and 
hours of 
operation of 
the limited 
waiting 
parking place 
 

Maximum 
length of 
stay in the 
limited 
waiting 
parking 
place 
 

 
All that part of the south west 
side of Chorley Road which 
is bounded on the south west 
side by so much of the edge 
of the carriageway of that 
highway as extends From a 
point 5 metres south eastern 
kerbline (extended) of 
Pendlebury Road for a 
distance of 11 metres in a 
south easterly direction, 
having a width throughout of 
2.2 metres. 

 
Any 
permitted 
vehicle 

 
Wholly within the 
limits of the 
parking place and 
parallel to the kerb 
with the nearside 
of the vehicle 
adjacent to the 
edge of the 
carriageway 

 
Monday to 
Friday  
9.00am to 
4.00pm 

 
Maximum 
stay of  
2 hours no 
return 
within 2 
hours 

 
All that part of the south west 
side of Chorley Road which 
is bounded on the south west 
side by so much of the edge 
of the carriageway of that 
highway as extends From a 
point 10 metres north 
western kerbline (extended) 
of Broom Street for a 
distance of 53 metres in a 
north westerly direction, 
having a width throughout of 
2.2 metres. 

 
Any 
vehicle 

 
Wholly within the 
limits of the 
parking place and 
parallel to the kerb 
with the nearside 
of the vehicle 
adjacent to the 
edge of the 
carriageway 

 
Monday to 
Friday  
9.00am to 
4.00pm 

 
Maximum 
stay of  
2 hours no 
return 
within 2 
hours 

 
All that part of the south west 
side of Chorley Road which 
is bounded on the south west 
side by so much of the edge 
of the carriageway of that 
highway as extends From a 
point 10 metres north 
western kerbline (extended) 
of Beech Street for a distance 
of 43 metres in a north 
westerly direction, having a 
width throughout of 2.2 

 
Any 
vehicle 

 
Wholly within the 
limits of the 
parking place and 
parallel to the kerb 
with the nearside 
of the vehicle 
adjacent to the 
edge of the 
carriageway 

 
Monday to 
Friday  
9.00am to 
4.00pm 

 
Maximum 
stay of  
2 hours no 
return 
within 2 
hours 

Page 30



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

27 

metres. 
 

 
All that part of the south west 
side of Chorley Road which 
is bounded on the south west 
side by so much of the edge 
of the carriageway of that 
highway as extends From a 
point 10 metres north 
western kerbline (extended) 
of Bain Street for a distance 
of 34 metres in a north 
westerly direction, having a 
width throughout of 2 .2 
metres. 
 

 
Any 
vehicle 

 
Wholly within the 
limits of the 
parking place and 
parallel to the kerb 
with the nearside 
of the vehicle 
adjacent to the 
edge of the 
carriageway 

 
Monday to 
Friday  
9.00am to 
4.00pm 

 
Maximum 
stay of  
2 hours no 
return 
within 2 
hours 

  
Schedule: 4 
Parking Place for Permit Holders Only  
Parking Places to be included to Schedule 5 of the Order 2015 (TRO Ref No- 1778) 
 
The length of road specified in Column 1 of this Schedule is authorised to be used as a 
parking place for permit holders only 
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 
Parts of a road 
authorised to be 
used as a resident’s 
parking place 

Class of vehicle Manner of 
standing in 
Parking Place 

Days of 
Operation 

Hours of Operation 

 
All that part of 
Beech Street which 
is bounded on both 
sides by so much of 
the edge of the 
carriageway of that 
highway as extends 
from its junction 
with Chorley Road 
to and including its 
cul de sac end 
 
 

 
Any permitted 
vehicle 
displaying in the 
relevant position 
a valid 
resident’s 
parking permit 
or a valid 
visitor’s permit 
 

 
Wholly within 
the limits of the 
parking place  
 

 
Monday to 
Friday 
 

 
10.00am to 3.00pm 
 
 

 
All that part of 
Broom Street which 
is bounded on both 

 
Any permitted 
vehicle 
displaying in the 

 
Wholly within 
the limits of the 
parking place  

 
Monday to 
Friday 

 
10.00am to 3.00pm 
 

Page 31



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

28 

sides by so much of 
the edge of the 
carriageway of that 
highway as extends 
from its junction 
with Chorley Road 
to its junction with 
Ogden Street.  
 

relevant position 
a valid 
resident’s 
parking permit 
or a valid 
visitor’s permit 
 

 

 
All that part of 
Ogden Street which 
is bounded on both 
sides by so much of 
the edge of the 
carriageway of that 
highway as extends 
from its junction 
with Broom Street 
to and including its 
cul de sac end.  
 

 
Any permitted 
vehicle 
displaying in the 
relevant position 
a valid 
resident’s 
parking permit 
or a valid 
visitor’s permit 

 
Wholly within 
the limits of the 
parking place  
 

 
Monday to 
Friday 
 

 
10.00am to 3.00pm 
 
 

 
All that part of 
Ogden Street which 
is bounded on both 
sides by so much of 
the edge of the 
carriageway of that 
highway as extends 
from its junction 
with Beech Street to 
and including its cul 
de sac end.  
 

 
Any permitted 
vehicle 
displaying in the 
relevant position 
a valid 
resident’s 
parking permit 
or a valid 
visitor’s permit 

 
Wholly within 
the limits of the 
parking place  
 

 
Monday to 
Friday 
 

 
10.00am to 3.00pm 
 

 
Schedule: 5 
Properties eligible for issue of a Parking Permit 
 
The properties specified in Column 2 of this Schedule in relation to the road name specified 
in Column 1 of this Schedule at which the properties are situated are eligible to apply for a 
permit.  
 
Column 1 Column 2 
Road Property 
Chorley Road Properties no.  2, 2A, 12, 12A, 14-22, 26 -

36, 36 Gable, 38, 38 (flat above) – 40, 42 
(ground floor and part first floor, part first 
floor) 44, 46 (first floor, First floor part & 
Ground floor,)48 - 58 (1st floor flat, Ground 

Page 32



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

29 

and first floor flat),  60 – 62, 62 ( Flat A & 
Flat B) 64 (Part ground floor, part ground 
and first floor) 66 - 80 (Even Numbers).  
 

Broom Street Properties no. 1A, 1 - 11, 15 (Odd 
Numbers). No. 2A, 2B, 2C, 2 - 24 (Even 
Numbers) 
 

1A Broom Street Suite no. 2, 4, 5, 6, 7  
 

Beech Street Properties no. 1 - 15 (Odd Numbers) 
  
Properties no. 2 - 24 (Even Numbers) 
 

Ogden Street Properties no. 8 - 34 (Even Numbers) 
  
Properties no. 9 - 33 (Odd Numbers) 
 

 
The above amendments will introduce a limited waiting bay on Chorley Road, broadly in line 
with the original request. Swinton Zone B permit holder zones will be able to park within 
these bays without time limit. 
 
The existing junction protection double yellow line restrictions on Chorley Road will be 
reduced to the ‘standard’ 10m, which will increase the length of available parking area whilst 
maintaining road safety. This will provide for approximately and additional 5 car spaces. 
 
Swinton Zone B permit holder zones are able to park at the following locations: 
 
Deans Road, Deanscourt Avenue, Heywood Street, St Ann’s Street, Balliol Street, St Peter’s 
Road, Everton Street, Paddison Street, Stockton Street, Chester Street, Stanwell Road, 
Shaftesbury Road, and Bain Street. 
 
In addition these permits will be valid in Beech Street, Broom Street and part of Ogden 
Street. 
 
The permit does not provide any exemption in respect of any other restrictions in these or any 
other roads except Zone B. 

 
 
DELIBERATIONS OF THE TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL: 
 
The matter is to be considered at a meeting on 1st November 2018. The objectors and lead 
petitioner have been informed of the date of the meeting inviting them to provide 
representation in respect of the proposed scheme. The options for consideration by the Panel 
are: 
 
1. Abandon the scheme and leave the situation as it currently is. 
 

Page 33



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

30 

2. Approve the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) as advertised and implement accordingly i.e. 
the objections are overruled without amendment. 
 
3. Amend the proposal for limited waiting parking restrictions to allow permit holders to 
utilise the bays on Chorley Road as well as those in the adjacent side streets within the 
existing permit Zone B. This will provide a turnover of parking spaces requested by the 
businesses on Chorley Road whilst minimising the impact for local residents.  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Due to lack of restrictions in the area commuters are parking for the whole day which reduces 
parking opportunities for residents and visitors to the shops and services located on Chorley 
Road. 
 
As such it is recommended that the amended scheme is introduced: 
 
Amend the proposal for limited waiting parking restrictions to allow permit holders to utilise 
the bays on Chorley Road as well as those in the adjacent side streets within the existing 
permit Zone B. This will provide a turnover of parking spaces requested by the businesses on 
Chorley Road whilst minimising the impact for local residents.  
 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 
1. Chorley Road:  
The scheme for Limited Waiting Parking Places would be operational from 9.00am to 
4.00pm, Monday to Friday waiting limited to 2 hours, No return within 2 hours, 
Exemption for vehicles displaying a valid Parking Permit (ZONE B) 
Outside of these hours anybody can park in the streets. 
 
Introducing limited waiting with permit holder parking restriction at these locations will 
remove some of the all-day parking that currently takes place and create a turnover of spaces 
for visitors to the local shops and amenities, which will improve the vitality of the local area. 
 
2. Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
The proposed parking scheme would take the format of signs being erected at the entrance 
points to the affected streets indicating that only vehicles with a valid parking permit 
displayed can park in the street. The scheme would be operational from Monday to Friday 
between the hours 10am to 3pm for vehicles displaying a valid Parking Permit (ZONE 
B). Outside of these hours anybody can park in the streets. It is not intended to mark out 

Page 34



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

31 

parking spaces on the carriageway; residents will be able to park their vehicles in the same 
manner as they do currently park provided that they are not causing any obstruction. 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
'Where objections are received by the Council following the advertisement of proposals, the 
decision regarding the implementation of the proposals is delegated to the relevant Lead 
Member for determination, following consultation with the Council’s Traffic Advisory Panel.  
Adhering to this procedure should not give rise to any legal implications.  
 
Should the recommendations be approved as set out in this report for: 
A. Chorley Road TRO Ref: 2114 
B. Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street TRO Ref: 2131. 
 
 This will be considered a substantial change to the proposals as advertised. Under regulation 
14(3) of the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 
1996 where modifications appear to make a substantial change in the order, the order making 
authority shall take the steps required by paragraph (4).  
The steps in paragraph (4) are such steps as appear to the order making authority as 
appropriate; 

(a) Informing persons likely to be affected by the modifications; 
(b) Giving those persons an opportunity of making representations; and 
(c) Ensuring such representations is duly considered by the authority. 

 
In complying with the above, the revised proposals should be re-advertised before making 
any order. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:    
 
The cost of the proposed scheme will be met from the Highways Block 3 devolved capital 
allocation for Swinton and Pendlebury, in the 2017-18 financial year. 
 
Expenditure code:  

- Broom Street, Beech Street, Swinton South, D10767 
- Chorley Road, Swinton South, D10755 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: N/A 
 

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Robert Owen & Yogeshwari Patel. TEL NO: 0161 779 4848 & 4857 
 

Page 35



TAP- TRO 2114 & 2131- Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street 
 

32 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Swinton South    
 
Ben Dolan 
Strategic Director, Place

 

Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 1 of 14

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL

1st November 2018

TITLE: City of Salford (Yew Street, Salford) (Prohibition Of Stopping Outside School 
Entrance) Order 2018 and City of Salford (Norfolk Street, Salford) (Prohibition Of 
Stopping Outside School Entrance) Order 2018

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the 
contents of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a 
decision to:

Approve the amended Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) as detailed in this report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

A request has been received from St Sebastian’s RC Primary School on Norfolk 
Street and from St Boniface RC Primary School on Yew Street to improve road 
safety in the area.

Safety measures have been proposed following requests the schools to improve road 
safety in the area particularly at school start and finish times. This parking obstructs 
the road and generates collision concerns with school children.

A traffic management scheme has been designed to introduce a ‘No Stopping on 
Entrance Markings’ Monday – Friday 8 am – 5 pm Traffic Regulation Order on Yew 
Street and Norfolk Street to cover the to cover the area considered appropriate by 
the Collision Investigation Team as indicated on the attached legal schedule and a 
plan in Appendices 1 and 2.

The Traffic Regulation Order to introduce ‘No Stopping on Entrance Markings’ order 
was legally advertised on 12th July 2018 for 21 days, during the time five objections 
have been received in connection to the proposal.

Page 79

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 14

Background

A request has been received from St Sebastian’s RC Primary School on Norfolk Street 
and from St Boniface RC Primary School on Yew Street to improve road safety in the 
area particularly at schools start and finish times.

It is of particularly concern that vehicles are parking on the footways and on both sides of 
the carriageway and thereby making it difficult for parents and children to cross Yew 
Street and Norfolk Street.

Yew Street and Norfolk Street are subject to 20 mph speed limit. Recently new panels of 
Visirails were provided outside the entrance to both schools to improve children safety. 
Currently there are School Keep Clear markings on both locations however they are not 
covered by Traffic Regulation Order. Also the School Keep Clear markings need to be 
extended due to new main pedestrian entrances to schools.

A package of measures have been drawn up to address the problems, these consisted 
of the introduction of School Keep Clear markings.

To address parking issues directly outside the school it is proposed to introduce no 
stopping restriction to prevent vehicles parking near the entrances to the schools. These 
will increase safety in the area for parents and children, especially at school start and 
finish times.

Therefore it was proposed to introduce ‘No Stopping on Entrance Markings’ Monday – 
Friday 8 am – 5 pm restrictions as outlined in the schedules and the attached plans in 
the Appendices 1 and 2.

The restrictions would prevent vehicles from parking near the school entrances. These 
would increase safety in the area for parents and children, especially at school start and 
finish times.

A scheme to introduce the ‘No Stopping on Entrance Markings’ was consulted upon by 
the Traffic Management Unit, local councillors and emergency services on 20th April 
2018.

Following the consultation to the proposals, no objections were received.

The scheme was subject to formal legal advertising on 12th July 2018, for 21 days until 
2nd August 2018. During this period five objections have been received in connection to 
the proposal only on Yew Street.

The Objections

The objections are reproduced in Appendix 3. The objection is made by the local 
residents – 5 household signed under one letter of objection regarding proposed 
restrictions on Yew Street. The residents are concerned about lack of parking places 
when a new School Keep Clear marking will be implemented. They have suggested 
changing the operation hours to peak times only (08.45 – 9.15 am and 03.00 – 03.30 
pm). Also they want to shorten the existing School Keep Clear marking to the minimum 
allowed to create more parking places.

Page 80



Page 3 of 14

No objections have been received regarding the proposals for Norfolk Street.

Consideration of the Objection

Urban Vision engineers reviewed the scheme and agree to change the operation hours 
to 8:00 am – 9:30 am and 3:00 pm – 4:30 pm Monday to Friday on both entrances on 
Yew Street to cover the drop off and pick up times. However the length of the existing 
School Keep Clear marking would be the same as school advised that their pupils use 
both entrances.

Letters have been sent out to all 5 residents on 21st August and it is reproduced in 
Appendix 4.

Response letter from the objector maintain the objection because of difficulties for 
residents to park. The letter is reproduced in Appendix 5. 

Urban Vision engineers reviewed scheme again and agree to shorten the existing 
markings to the minimum of 25.56m. Also the proposed School Keep Clear marking 
should be moved in a westerly direction to cover school house. Also to provide more 
space to park Urban Vision engineers recommend reducing the existing ‘No Waiting’ 
Monday to Friday 8.00 am – 6 pm restriction on the north side of Yew Street to help local 
residents whilst still maintaining visibility at the junction with Grecian Street North.

Recommended legal schedule and a plan showing proposed restrictions are detailed in 
Appendix 6 and 7.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the TRO be brought into effect in the amended form scheduled at 
Appendix 6 hereto.

Appendix:
1. TRO schedule as advertised
2. Plan of affected area as advertised
3. Objections
4. Letter sent to objectors
5. Response letter from the objector
6. Schedule showing the recommended TRO
7. Plan showing the recommended TRO

Page 81



Page 4 of 14

APPENDIX 1

PROPOSAL:

Introduction of:

No Stopping on Entrance Markings Monday – Friday 8 am – 5 pm restriction

Yew Street

North side – from a point 21 metres west from the extended western 
kerbline of The Bails for a distance of 25.56 metres in a westerly direction.

North side – from a point 78.76 metres west from the extended western 
kerbline of The Bails for a distance of 38.7 metres in a westerly direction.

Norfolk Street West side – from the rear of the southerly footway of Locket Street for a 
distance of 63 metres in a southerly direction.

Page 82



Page 5 of 14

APPENDIX 2

P
age 83



Page 6 of 14

P
age 84



Page 7 of 14

P
age 85



Page 8 of 14

APPENDIX 3

Page 86



Page 9 of 14

APPENDIX 4

21st August 2018

Subject: YEW STREET – Prohibition of stopping outside school entrance

Dear Resident,

Thank you for your letter regarding proposed parking restrictions on Yew Street.

I do understand your concerns about taking parking spaces when we introduce the 
Traffic Regulation Order. Child safety is a priority which is why we cannot shorten the 
existing or new zig-zags outside the school entrances. School advised that both 
entrances are used by their pupils so we need to make sure both of them are kept 
clear.

However after consideration of your objection we can change restriction operation 
hours to 8:00 am – 9:30 am and 3:00 pm – 4:30 pm Monday to Friday on both 
entrances to cover the drop of and pick up times.

I hope the above clarifies your concerns and I would appreciate if you could 
reconsider your objection and send me confirmation either by post or e-mail.

If you do have more questions please do not hesitate to contact me.

Page 87



Page 10 of 14

APPENDIX 5

Page 88



Page 11 of 14

APPENDIX 6

PROPOSAL:

Introduction of:

No Stopping on Entrance Markings 
Monday – Friday 8.00 – 9.30 am – 3.00 – 4.30 pm restriction

Yew Street

North side – from a point 21 metres west from the extended western 
kerbline of The Bails for a distance of 25.56 metres in a westerly direction.

North side – from a point 5 metres east from the extended eastern kerbline 
of Grecian Street North in a westerly direction for a distance of 25.56 
metres.

Introduction of:

No Stopping on Entrance Markings 
Monday – Friday 8 am – 5 pm restriction

Norfolk Street West side – from the rear of the southerly footway of Locket Street for a 
distance of 63 metres in a southerly direction.

Page 89



Page 12 of 14

APPENDIX 7

P
age 90



Page 13 of 14

P
age 91



Page 14 of 14

Deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel

The matter is to be considered at a meeting on 1st November 2018. The objector has 
been informed of the date of the meeting to enable them to attend.

Recommendation

That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the contents 
of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a decision to 
introduce ‘No Stopping on Entrance Markings’ as set out in this report.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

Implementation of the restrictions would decrease the risk of collisions and improve 
pedestrian safety.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: No comments received.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None

CONTACT OFFICER: Judyta Szylejko       TEL NO: 0161 779 6097

WARD TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Broughton and Irwell Riverside 

Ben Dolan
Strategic Director, Place

Page 92



Page 1 of 19 
 

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

ITEM NO. 

 
 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
 

TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 
 

1st November 2018 
 

 
TITLE: City of Salford (Lynton Road, Lowry Drive and Station Road, Pendlebury) 
(Prohibition and Restriction of Waiting and Amendment) Order 2018 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the 
contents of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a 
decision to: 
 

Approve the amended Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) as detailed in this 
report. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
A request has been made to the Swinton & Pendlebury Highways Task Group for a 
relaxation on the waiting restrictions on Lynton Road and new waiting restrictions on 
Lowry Drive at the junction with Station Road in Salford. 
 
A traffic management scheme has been designed to remove some existing double 
yellow lines and introduce a ‘No Waiting’ Monday to Friday 9 am – 4 pm on Lynton 
Road. A scheme has also been designed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
Traffic Regulation Order on Lowry Drive to cover the extents considered appropriate 
by the Highways Task Group as indicated on the attached Appendix 1 and 2. 
 
The Traffic Regulation Order to introduce ‘No Waiting’ and ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
restrictions was legally advertised on 16th August 2018 for 21 days, during that time 
one objection has been received in connection to the proposal for Lynton Road. Two 
objections were received for Lowry Drive during the consultation period plus one 
objection received after consultation period. A comment supporting the scheme on 
Lowry Drive was also submitted. 
 

Page 93

Agenda Item 6



Page 2 of 19 
 

Background  
 
A request has been made to the Swinton & Pendlebury Highways Task Group for a 
relaxation of the waiting restrictions on Lynton Road and new waiting restrictions on 
Lowry Drive in Salford. 
 
It was proposed to amend the existing ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Traffic Regulation Order 
at Lynton Road to ‘No Waiting’ restrictions Monday – Friday 9 am – 4 pm and to 
introduce junction protection – ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions at Lowry Drive and 
Station Road. 
 
Currently on Lynton Road there is a ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction along the north 
side. The restriction was introduced to prevent excessive parking associated with the 
Rugby Club which has now been demolished. The revised restrictions would help the 
local community and ensure that accessibly for service vehicles is available. 
 
The solution proposed was to remove and relax some of the existing ‘No Waiting at Any 
Time’ restrictions on Lynton Road to ‘Monday – Friday 9am – 4pm’ whilst ensuring there 
were adequate regulations to maintain safe and suitable access. 
 
Lowry Drive is a narrow street without any restrictions. There is also a new nursery on 
Station Road at the junction with Lowry Drive. Cars are parking at the junction on the 
carriageway and partly on pavements narrow the road and cause visibility difficulties and 
access issues. The ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions will keep junction clear at all 
times improving safety both for pedestrians and vehicles. 
 
To address the problems it was proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
restrictions at Lowry Drive at the junction with Station Road. These restrictions are 
detailed in Appendix 1 and Appendix 2. 
 
The scheme was consulted upon by the Traffic Management Unit, local councillors and 
emergency services on 28th June 2018. 
 
Following the consultation to the proposals, no objections were received. 
 
The scheme was subject to formal legal advertising on 16th August 2018, for 21 days to 
7th September. Letters were sent out to premises directly affected by restrictions on 
Lynton Road and Lowry Drive (reproduced in Appendix 3) and during this period three 
objections were received (1 objection for Lynton Road and 2 objections for Lowry Drive) 
and one comment (for Lowry Drive). An additional objection for Lowry Drive was received 
after the consultation period; it is also included within this report. 
 
 
The Objections 
 
LYNTON ROAD 
 
The Lynton Road objection is reproduced at Appendix 4a. The objection is made by the 
Church Leader Swinton Salvation Army and is regarding the restrictions on Lynton Road. 
The objector is happy to see increased parking provision provided on Lynton Road but 
has suggested maintaining more ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction to keep their 
driveway clear at all times. It is not appropriate to protect private driveways with short 

Page 94



Page 3 of 19 
 

sections of double yellow lines. Furthermore the Church does not have dropped kerbs to 
access to the driveway. The objector has been advised that this access can be 
maintained by Access Protection Marking and was advised how to apply for an Access 
Protection marking as well as how to have dropped kerbs provided to access the private 
drive. 
 
LOWRY DRIVE 
 
The first objection is reproduced at Appendix 4b and is regarding the restrictions on 
Lowry Drive. The objection is made by a local resident. The main concern for the 
resident was taking parking spaces on Lowry Drive and that the properties will be 
devalued and unmarketable. Also the objector said he has never seen any collisions and 
his concern is that vehicles will be speeding on Station Road because of no parking at 
the junction. The resident was advised that according to Highway Code there should not 
be any parking within 10 metres of a junction. 
 
The second objection is reproduced at Appendix 4c and is regarding the restrictions on 
Lowry Drive. The objection is made by a local business. Their main concern is lack of 
parking for their employees and for customers in front of the business on Station Road.   
 
The third objection is reproduced at Appendix 4d and is regarding the restrictions on 
Lowry Drive. This objection was made after consultation period on 17th October 2018. 
The objection is made by a local business. The objector pointing that there are difficulties 
with parked cars on far end of Lowry Drive not on Station Road. 
 
The Comment 
 
The comment was made by Kids Planet Nursery on Lowry Drive. They are supportive of 
the proposal and are keen to see increased visibility and safety at the junction of Lowry 
Drive – Station Road. The comment is reproduced in Appendix 5.  
 
 
Consideration of the Objection 
 
Urban Vision Engineers agree that a balance between visibility and parking for local 
community and businesses has to be made.  
 
After considering the objections Urban Vision decided to change restriction on Lowry 
Drive from ‘No Waiting at any Time’ to ‘No Waiting’ Monday – Friday 7am – 7pm. The 
new restriction would cover opening hours of the new Kids Nursery and would keep 
junction clear during the day when traffic volumes are higher and allow safe movement 
for vehicles coming to Lowry Drive and joining the traffic on Station Road. The restriction 
will also leave more of Lowry Drive unrestricted and after the operation hours so that 
residents, businesses and customers could find a place to park their vehicles. 
 
Therefore, officers recommend that the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction on Lowry 
Drive should be replaced by ‘No Waiting’ Monday – Friday 7 am – 7 pm and the 
restriction reduced on the north side of Lowry Drive to 10 metres from the junction with 
Station Road. 
 
No changes to the proposed plan on Lynton Road are recommended.  
 

Page 95



Page 4 of 19 
 

The proposed Legal Schedule and plan for the modified TRO are shown at Appendix 6 
and 7. 
 
  
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the TRO be brought into effect in the modified form shown at 
Appendix 6 and 7 hereto. 
 
 
 
 
Appendix: 

1. Schedule as advertised 
2. Plan as advertised 
3. Letter sent to residents on Lowry Drive 
4. Objections 

A) Objection Lynton Road 
B) Objection 1 Lowry Drive 
C) Objection 2 Lowry Drive 
D) Objection 3 Lowry Drive 

5. The comment 
6. Revised TRO schedule 
7. Revised TRO plan  

Page 96



Page 5 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 
PROPOSALS:  
 

Revocation of:  
 
 
TRO 26/2/275 THE GREATER MANCHESTER COUNTY (STATION  ROAD/LYNTON 
ROAD/LYNTON AVENUE, PENDLEBURY)(PROHIBITION OF WAIT ING)(COUNTY) ORDER 1983 
 
 

Lynton Road, Pendlebury 

 
North east side from the south east kerbline of Station Road to the 
north west kerbline of Lynton Avenue 

 
 
 
TRO 504 THE CITY OF SALFORD (STATION ROAD, CROMWELL  ROAD, LYNTON ROAD AND 
BOUNDARY ROAD, SWINTON) (PROHIBITION OF WAITING) OR DER, 1988 
 
 

Lynton Road 

 
South west side, from the south easterly kerbline of Station Road in a 
south easterly direction for a distance of 15 metres 

 
 
Introduction of:  
 
No Waiting at Any Time 
 

Lynton Road 

 
South side, from the south easterly kerbline of Station Road in a 
south easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres 
 

Lynton Road 

 
North side, from the south easterly kerbline of Station Road in a south 
easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres 
 

Lynton Road 

 
North side, from the westerly kerbline of Lynton Avenue in a north 
westerly direction for a distance of 5 metres 
 

Station Road 

 
South east side, from a point 10 metres south west from the extended 
southerly kerbline of Lowry Drive to a point 5 metres north east from 
the extended northerly kerbline of Lowry Drive 
 

Lowry Drive 

 
South side from its junction with Station Road for a distance of 10 
metres in a south easterly direction 
 

Lowry Drive 

 
North side, from its junction with Station Road for a distance of 22 
metres in a south easterly direction 
 

 
No Waiting Monday – Friday, 9 am – 4 pm 
 

Lynton Road 

 
North side from a point 10 metres south east from the south easterly 
kerbline of Station Road to a point 5 metres north west from the 
westerly kerbline of Lynton Avenue 

 

Page 97



 

Page 6 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 2 

 
 

P
age 98



 

Page 7 of 19 
 

 

P
age 99



 

Page 8 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 3 
 
16th August 2018 
 

 
    
Subject:  

LYNTON ROAD – WAITING RESTRICTIONS 

   
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 
A request has been received from Swinton & Pendlebury Highways Task Group for a relaxation 
on the waiting restrictions on Lynton Road. 
 
It is proposed to amend ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Traffic Regulation Order on Lynton Road to 
‘No Waiting’ restriction Monday – Friday 9 am – 4 pm and ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction at 
the junction with Station Road as outlined in the attached plan. 
 
A copy of the proposed Order, a plan of the area and statement of the Council's reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be examined at Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Rd, Swinton, 
M27 5DA, 8.30 am – 5 pm Monday to Friday. Details can be viewed online at 
http://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-orders/.  
 
If you wish to object to the proposed Order you should send the grounds of your objection in 
writing to Fiona Ledden, City Solicitor: phlegal@manchester.gov.uk or PO BOX 532, Town Hall, 
Manchester, M60 2LA, by the 7th September 2018  quoting ref L/TGA/OUT1093/654 . 
 
 
16th August 2018 
 

 
    
Subject:  

LOWRY DRIVE – WAITING RESTRICTIONS 

   
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 
A request has been received from Swinton & Pendlebury Highways Task Group to propose new 
waiting restrictions on Lowry Drive. 
 
It is proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Traffic Regulation Order on Lowry Drive at 
the junction with Station Road as outlined in the attached plan. 
 
A copy of the proposed Order, a plan of the area and statement of the Council's reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be examined at Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Rd, Swinton, 
M27 5DA, 8.30 am – 5 pm Monday to Friday. Details can be viewed online at 
http://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-orders/.  
 
If you wish to object to the proposed Order you should send the grounds of your objection in 
writing to Fiona Ledden, City Solicitor: phlegal@manchester.gov.uk or PO BOX 532, Town Hall, 
Manchester, M60 2LA, by the 7th September 2018  quoting ref L/TGA/OUT1093/654 . 

Page 100



 

Page 9 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 4a 
 
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E -MAIL ON 31.08.2018 
Objector  
Hello 
 
I have recently received your letter through the post regarding the 'Lynton Road 
Waiting Restrictions'. 
 
I am the leader of The Salvation Army on this road. We are very happy that the 
parking restrictions are going to be removed from the road, however, we are 
concerned about cars blocking our drive way. Currently we have a parking space at 
the back of the hall which we access from Lynton Road. I am wondering if the double 
yellow lines can be maintained for the few metres in front of this parking space to 
allow us access. 
 
Kind Regards, 
Response  sent by e -mail on 05.09.2018  
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail. 
 
We do not provide double yellow lines to protect driveways, however access can be 
maintained by access protection marking (H-bar) at a property owner’s expense. This 
is a solid white line marked across the driveway to alert drivers to the fact that there 
is a private access at that point which must be kept clear. The marking is not 
enforceable but does serve to highlight that any vehicle parking there is creating an 
obstruction - which can be dealt with by the police. 
 
You can apply for H-bar by contacting the City Council. Before an access protection 
marking can be undertaken, the property owner must have an approved dropped 
crossing and hard standing where their vehicle is parked. You should not drive over a 
footway without proper dropped kerbs. 
 
I hope the above clarifies your concerns and I would appreciate if you could 
reconsider your objection and send me confirmation. 
 
If you do have more questions please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
 
 
  

Page 101



 

Page 10 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 4b  
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 28.08.2018 
Objector  
Further to your letter dated 16th August 2018 regarding proposal to introduce ‘No 
Waiting at Any Time’ traffic regulation order on Lowry Drive at Swinton the junction 
with Station Road, I write to dispute it. 
 
If Salford City Council put double yellow lines from off the main road, I will have 
nowhere to park.  Whilst I understand the facility to park outside my own home is not 
a right but without this option I would have nowhere else to park. Station road is a 
main road so I do not have other options such as putting a new drive in. 
 
Also I feel if Salford City Council proceeds with the proposed traffic regulation order 
on Station Road this will speed the traffic up, which will be a danger as there are 
shops, church and a school just down the road so it is busy all day. There are no 
speed bumps so the only reason drivers slow down at the moment is because of the 
parked cars. 
 
I can't see a reason why the council are putting double yellow lines as the road is 
currently safe, I have never seen a crash/debris from a crash in the many years I 
have lived here. 
 
So in summary I will have nowhere to park my car, the houses on the other side of 
Station Road, the residents there park alongside that side of the road.  I am worried 
my property will be devalued and unmarketable as it would no longer appeal to 
potential buyers because of the proposal. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
Response  sent by post on 05.09.2018  
Dear Resident, 
 
 
Thank you for your letter regarding proposed parking restrictions on Lowry Drive. 
 
We have received complaints regarding difficulties for vehicles joining Station Road 
from Lowry Drive. Followed these complaints the scheme has been drawn up and 
approved by Swinton & Pendlebury Highways Task Group. 
 
I do understand your concerns about taking parking spaces when we introduce the 
Traffic Regulation Order. However Highway Code Rule 243 states do not park within 
10 metres of a junction.   
 
After implementing the scheme visibility for vehicles joining Station Road will be 
increased. The likelihood that the scheme will encourage drivers to increase speed is 
low because of the short length of restrictions proposed, the nearby junction with 
Lees Street and nearby controlled crossing point. 
 
However after consideration of your objection we can change the length of the 
restriction on the north side of Lowry Drive to 10 metres from proposed 22 metres as 

Page 102



 

Page 11 of 19 
 

per the attached drawing. 
 
I hope the above clarifies your concerns and I would appreciate if you could 
reconsider your objection and send me confirmation either by post or e-mail. 
 
If you do have more questions please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
  

Page 103



 

Page 12 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 4c 
 
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 22.08.2018 
Objector  
Dear Sir or Madam, 
I am emailing you on behalf of Curry World, Swinton, to find out more information 
about the proposed waiting restrictions.  
We are number 194 on the plan and we are pleased with the proposals as over the 
last few years people would park their vehicles in front, and by the side which made it 
difficult for us to use the side gate to take out the commercial bins.  
However, we are concerned that we may not be able to park our cars in front of the 
takeaway, which is something that we still wish to do in order to run the business. Is 
there a way where we can still have the restrictions, but make us as exception 
whether that is by providing us with a permit or something along this line?  
If you can provide us with a contact number, we can continue this conversation over 
the phone, rather than email. 
I look forward to your response. 
Kind regards, 
Response  sent by e -mail on 23.08.2018  
Good Afternoon, 
Thank you for your e-mail.  
The scheme seeks to improve visibility for vehicles and pedestrians at the junction 
Station Road – Lowry Drive. Unfortunately there are no permits to park on double 
yellows. 
With regards to the above can you confirm you have no objections to the scheme? 
If you have any questions please let me know. 
Kind regards, 
Objector  03.09.2018 
Hi, 
After our phone conversation earlier today, I am writing to express my decision to 
oppose the scheme, which involves the introduction of double yellow lines. I want to 
thank you for trying your best to negotiate a deal which would suit both parties, but 
that will not come to fruition. The feeling that we are getting from this predicament is 
that a new business (Kids Planet Nursery is being favoured over our small business 
which has been running for almost 30 years. I still feel a compromise can be made 
through the introduction of single yellow lines, but your team have rejected this idea. 
We require the space in front of the takeaway every evening, a place where we have 
been parking our car for decades. Although the car does not remain there for the 
entire evening as we have drivers who come in and out to collect orders to deliver.  
I mentioned numerous times that when I first heard the news of restrictions 
potentially being introduced, I had mixed feelings as there are times when we arrive 
to work and find a car parked in front of the takeaway for the entire day/night. A 
possible introduction of a bay designated for our business was proposed, but you 
mentioned this would not be possible. Also, the possibility of providing us with 
exclusivity through a permit or something along this line was also mentioned.  
There seems to be a sense of injustice for the small businesses who are trying to 
make ends meet and I do hope your organisation can consider the options I have 
mentioned previously before and have complete integrity when discussing this 
further.  

Page 104



 

Page 13 of 19 
 

I look forward to your response. 
Response  sent by e -mail on 05.09.2018  
Good Afternoon, 
Thank you for your e-mail. 
After further discussions we decided to drop down the length of restriction on north 
side of Lowry Drive to 10 metres as per the attached drawing so more of the street 
would be unrestricted. That will still provide visibility for vehicles and pedestrians and 
also complying with the Highway Code.  
In terms of your drivers collecting orders to deliver you can load and unload from 
double yellow lines. 
If you have more questions, please do not hesitate to ask. 
Objector  26.09.2018 
Good morning, 
 
Thank you for your response. 
 
I have discussed this with the drivers and the rest of the workers and they are happy 
with the new conditions of the double yellow lines being placed on Lowry drive but 
are not accepting the double yellow lines being placed in front of the takeaway. At 
times we may not get many delivery orders and the car/s will remain in front of the 
business and the drivers do not want to have the feeling of anxiety over potentially 
receiving parking tickets.  
 
Also, let us forget about the drivers and the rest of the workers for a moment and 
think about how this will affect the business, in particular, the customers. There is a 
consensus amongst the workers that the new restrictions will put off our customers 
from using our business.  
 
I have mentioned this in the previous email that there seems to be an element of 
injustice here for our business which has been present for almost 30 years. This is 
not only a place for customers to purchase food they enjoy but a place for friends and 
family to come together or find one another.  
 
I look forward to your response. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 105



 

Page 14 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 4d 
 
 
E-mail sent on 16.10.2018  
Good Afternoon, 
I am contacting you regarding proposed waiting restrictions on Station Road / Lowry 
Drive. The consultation period for the scheme ended on 7th September 2018. 
We received objections to the scheme and as part of the process to introduce any 
form of parking restrictions, any objection received must be assessed before 
progressing, the proposal and objection(s) must be presented to the Traffic Advisory 
Panel (TAP). This is a panel of Councillors where consideration of the proposals and 
the objection(s) will be heard by the Panel, and a recommendation will be made to 
the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development. The Lead Member will 
then make a decision at the first briefing following the panel to either: 
• Withdraw the order, or 
• Amend the order, or 
• Introduce the order as originally proposed 
TAP meeting is scheduled on 1st November 2018 however the time and agenda is 
not confirmed yet. The agenda and other details will be published on Salford City 
Council website. You are welcome to attend the meeting and present your statement 
to the panel. 
Please be advised that I did not submit all necessary reports yet so if you will provide 
me with grounds of your objections as soon as possible I will be happy to include 
your comments in the report. 
I will send another e-mail confirming date of the meeting so you can attend if you 
wish to. 
If you do have any questions please do not hesitate to ask. 
Objector  17.10.2018 
Good morning  
Thank you for your email and for giving me the opportunity to explain my objections 
to the current plan, especially as the date had passed. 
I do think the yellow lines are necessary but to only come round the corner a short 
distance onto Station Road, the problem is the parking at the very end of Lowry Drive 
which makes it difficult and dangerous to turn either into or out of Lowry Drive, there 
are no parking issues on station road and the current proposed plan would create 
parking difficulties for both my business and the business at 192 Station Road, 
however the business on the corner of Station Road and Lowry Drive does not open 
until 4.30pm so any parking restriction which comes a short distance onto Station 
Road I believe would not have an adverse affect on that business 
Regards 
Response  sent by e -mail on 05.09.2018  
Good Morning, 
Thank you for your e-mail. I will include your objection in the report. 
Kind regards, 
 
 
 

Page 106



 

Page 15 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 5 
 

E-mail sent on 03.09.2018  
Good Afternoon, 
 
I am contacting you regarding double yellow lines which are proposed at the junction 
Station Road / Lowry Drive. Can you please advise what days & times your nursery 
is open? 
 
Kind regards, 
Comment – sent on 03.09.2018  
Hi,  
 
We open mon-fri 7-7pm. Can I ask why? 
E-mail sent on 03.09.2018  
Hi, 
 
There is an advertised proposal to provide a junction protection (double yellows) at 
the junction Station Road/Lowry Drive. Details were posted on site (lamp post), via 
letter and you can check it also online at the link below. I am looking on other 
possibilities to provide better visibility at the above mentioned junction. 
 
If you have other concerns about traffic flow please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Kind regards, 
Commen t – sent on 03.09.2018  
Hi,  
 
I think this would be great, so many people in the community park here and it is so 
dangerous. 

 

Page 107



 

Page 16 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 6 
 
PROPOSALS:  
 

Revocation of:  
 
 
TRO 26/2/275 THE GREATER MANCHESTER COUNTY (STATION  ROAD/LYNTON ROAD/LYNTON AVENUE, 
PENDLEBURY)(PROHIBITION OF WAITING)(COUNTY) ORDER 1 983 
 
 

Lynton Road, Pendlebury 

 
North east side from the south east kerbline of Station Road to the north west 
kerbline of Lynton Avenue 

 
 
 
TRO 504 THE CITY OF SALFORD (STATION ROAD, CROMWELL  ROAD, LYNTON ROAD AND BOUNDARY 
ROAD, SWINTON) (PROHIBITION OF WAITING) ORDER, 1988  
 
 

Lynton Road 

 
South west side, from the south easterly kerbline of Station Road in a south 
easterly direction for a distance of 15 metres 

 
 
Introduction of:  
 
No Waiting at Any Time 
 

Lynton Road 

 
South side, from the south easterly kerbline of Station Road in a south easterly 
direction for a distance of 10 metres 
 

Lynton Road 

 
North side, from the south easterly kerbline of Station Road in a south easterly 
direction for a distance of 10 metres 
 

Lynton Road 

 
North side, from the westerly kerbline of Lynton Avenue in a north westerly 
direction for a distance of 5 metres 
 

 
No Waiting Monday – Friday, 9 am – 4 pm 
 

Lynton Road 

 
North side from a point 10 metres south east from the south easterly kerbline of 
Station Road to a point 5 metres north west from the westerly kerbline of Lynton 
Avenue 

 
 
No Waiting Monday – Friday, 7 am – 7 pm 

 

Station Road 

 
South east side, from a point 10 metres south west from the extended southerly 
kerbline of Lowry Drive to a point 5 metres north east from the extended 
northerly kerbline of Lowry Drive 
 

Lowry Drive 

 
Both sides from its junction with Station Road for a distance of 10 metres in a 
south easterly direction 
 

Page 108



 

Page 17 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 7 

 
 

P
age 109



 

Page 18 of 19 
 

 
 

P
age 110



 

Page 19 of 19 
 

Deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel  
 
The matter is to be considered at a meeting on 1st November 2018. The objectors have 
been informed of the date of the meeting to enable them to attend. 
 
Recommendation  
 
That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the contents 
of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a decision to 
introduce amended Traffic Regulation Order as set out in this report.

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
 
N/A 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 
Implementation of the restrictions would decrease the risk of collisions and improve 
access. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A 
 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   N/A 
 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: There are no procurement implications within this 
report. Christine Flisk 19.10.2018 

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Judyta Szylejko         TEL NO: 0161 779 6097 
 
WARD TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Pendlebury 
 
 
Ben Dolan 
Strategic Director, Place 

Page 111



OBJECTION 1 
 
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E -MAIL ON 31.08.2018 
Objector  
Hello 
 
I have recently received your letter through the post regarding the 'Lynton Road 
Waiting Restrictions'. 
 
I am the leader of The Salvation Army on this road. We are very happy that the 
parking restrictions are going to be removed from the road, however, we are 
concerned about cars blocking our drive way. Currently we have a parking space at 
the back of the hall which we access from Lynton Road. I am wondering if the double 
yellow lines can be maintained for the few metres in front of this parking space to 
allow us access. 
 
Kind Regards, 
Response  sent by e -mail on 05.09.2018  
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail. 
 
We do not provide double yellow lines to protect driveways, however access can be 
maintained by access protection marking (H-bar) at a property owner’s expense. This 
is a solid white line marked across the driveway to alert drivers to the fact that there 
is a private access at that point which must be kept clear. The marking is not 
enforceable but does serve to highlight that any vehicle parking there is creating an 
obstruction - which can be dealt with by the police. 
 
You can apply for H-bar by contacting the City Council. Before an access protection 
marking can be undertaken, the property owner must have an approved dropped 
crossing and hard standing where their vehicle is parked. You should not drive over a 
footway without proper dropped kerbs. 
 
I hope the above clarifies your concerns and I would appreciate if you could 
reconsider your objection and send me confirmation. 
 
If you do have more questions please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
 
 
  

Page 112



OBJECTION 2  
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 28.08.2018 
Objector  
Further to your letter dated 16th August 2018 regarding proposal to introduce ‘No 
Waiting at Any Time’ traffic regulation order on Lowry Drive at Swinton the junction 
with Station Road, I write to dispute it. 
 
If Salford City Council put double yellow lines from off the main road, I will have 
nowhere to park.  Whilst I understand the facility to park outside my own home is not 
a right but without this option I would have nowhere else to park. Station road is a 
main road so I do not have other options such as putting a new drive in. 
 
Also I feel if Salford City Council proceeds with the proposed traffic regulation order 
on Station Road this will speed the traffic up, which will be a danger as there are 
shops, church and a school just down the road so it is busy all day. There are no 
speed bumps so the only reason drivers slow down at the moment is because of the 
parked cars. 
 
I can't see a reason why the council are putting double yellow lines as the road is 
currently safe, I have never seen a crash/debris from a crash in the many years I 
have lived here. 
 
So in summary I will have nowhere to park my car, the houses on the other side of 
Station Road, the residents there park alongside that side of the road.  I am worried 
my property will be devalued and unmarketable as it would no longer appeal to 
potential buyers because of the proposal. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
Response  sent by post on 05.09.2018  
Dear Resident, 
 
 
Thank you for your letter regarding proposed parking restrictions on Lowry Drive. 
 
We have received complaints regarding difficulties for vehicles joining Station Road 
from Lowry Drive. Followed these complaints the scheme has been drawn up and 
approved by Swinton & Pendlebury Highways Task Group. 
 
I do understand your concerns about taking parking spaces when we introduce the 
Traffic Regulation Order. However Highway Code Rule 243 states do not park within 
10 metres of a junction.   
 
After implementing the scheme visibility for vehicles joining Station Road will be 
increased. The likelihood that the scheme will encourage drivers to increase speed is 
low because of the short length of restrictions proposed, the nearby junction with 
Lees Street and nearby controlled crossing point. 
 
However after consideration of your objection we can change the length of the 
restriction on the north side of Lowry Drive to 10 metres from proposed 22 metres as 

Page 113



per the attached drawing. 
 
I hope the above clarifies your concerns and I would appreciate if you could 
reconsider your objection and send me confirmation either by post or e-mail. 
 
If you do have more questions please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
  

Page 114



OBJECTION 3 
 
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 22.08.2018 
Objector  
Dear Sir or Madam, 
I am emailing you on behalf of Curry World, Swinton, to find out more information 
about the proposed waiting restrictions.  
We are number 194 on the plan and we are pleased with the proposals as over the 
last few years people would park their vehicles in front, and by the side which made it 
difficult for us to use the side gate to take out the commercial bins.  
However, we are concerned that we may not be able to park our cars in front of the 
takeaway, which is something that we still wish to do in order to run the business. Is 
there a way where we can still have the restrictions, but make us as exception 
whether that is by providing us with a permit or something along this line?  
If you can provide us with a contact number, we can continue this conversation over 
the phone, rather than email. 
I look forward to your response. 
Kind regards, 
Response  sent by e -mail on 23.08.2018  
Good Afternoon, 
Thank you for your e-mail.  
The scheme seeks to improve visibility for vehicles and pedestrians at the junction 
Station Road – Lowry Drive. Unfortunately there are no permits to park on double 
yellows. 
With regards to the above can you confirm you have no objections to the scheme? 
If you have any questions please let me know. 
Kind regards, 
Objector  03.09.2018 
Hi, 
After our phone conversation earlier today, I am writing to express my decision to 
oppose the scheme, which involves the introduction of double yellow lines. I want to 
thank you for trying your best to negotiate a deal which would suit both parties, but 
that will not come to fruition. The feeling that we are getting from this predicament is 
that a new business (Kids Planet Nursery) is being favoured over our small business 
which has been running for almost 30 years. I still feel a compromise can be made 
through the introduction of single yellow lines, but your team have rejected this idea. 
We require the space in front of the takeaway every evening, a place where we have 
been parking our car for decades. Although the car does not remain there for the 
entire evening as we have drivers who come in and out to collect orders to deliver.  
I mentioned numerous times that when I first heard the news of restrictions 
potentially being introduced, I had mixed feelings as there are times when we arrive 
to work and find a car parked in front of the takeaway for the entire day/night. A 
possible introduction of a bay designated for our business was proposed, but you 
mentioned this would not be possible. Also, the possibility of providing us with 
exclusivity through a permit or something along this line was also mentioned.  
There seems to be a sense of injustice for the small businesses who are trying to 
make ends meet and I do hope your organisation can consider the options I have 
mentioned previously before and have complete integrity when discussing this 
further.  

Page 115



I look forward to your response. 
Response  sent by e -mail on 05.09.2018  
Good Afternoon, 
Thank you for your e-mail. 
After further discussions we decided to drop down the length of restriction on north 
side of Lowry Drive to 10 metres as per the attached drawing so more of the street 
would be unrestricted. That will still provide visibility for vehicles and pedestrians and 
also complying with the Highway Code.  
In terms of your drivers collecting orders to deliver you can load and unload from 
double yellow lines. 
If you have more questions, please do not hesitate to ask. 
Objector  26.09.2018 
Good morning, 
 
Thank you for your response. 
 
I have discussed this with the drivers and the rest of the workers and they are happy 
with the new conditions of the double yellow lines being placed on Lowry drive but 
are not accepting the double yellow lines being placed in front of the takeaway. At 
times we may not get many delivery orders and the car/s will remain in front of the 
business and the drivers do not want to have the feeling of anxiety over potentially 
receiving parking tickets.  
 
Also, let us forget about the drivers and the rest of the workers for a moment and 
think about how this will affect the business, in particular, the customers. There is a 
consensus amongst the workers that the new restrictions will put off our customers 
from using our business.  
 
I have mentioned this in the previous email that there seems to be an element of 
injustice here for our business which has been present for almost 30 years. This is 
not only a place for customers to purchase food they enjoy but a place for friends and 
family to come together or find one another.  
 
I look forward to your response. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 116



OBJECTION 4 
 
 
E-mail sent on 16.10.2018  
Good Afternoon, 
I am contacting you regarding proposed waiting restrictions on Station Road / Lowry 
Drive. The consultation period for the scheme ended on 7th September 2018. 
We received objections to the scheme and as part of the process to introduce any 
form of parking restrictions, any objection received must be assessed before 
progressing, the proposal and objection(s) must be presented to the Traffic Advisory 
Panel (TAP). This is a panel of Councillors where consideration of the proposals and 
the objection(s) will be heard by the Panel, and a recommendation will be made to 
the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development. The Lead Member will 
then make a decision at the first briefing following the panel to either: 
• Withdraw the order, or 
• Amend the order, or 
• Introduce the order as originally proposed 
TAP meeting is scheduled on 1st November 2018 however the time and agenda is 
not confirmed yet. The agenda and other details will be published on Salford City 
Council website. You are welcome to attend the meeting and present your statement 
to the panel. 
Please be advised that I did not submit all necessary reports yet so if you will provide 
me with grounds of your objections as soon as possible I will be happy to include 
your comments in the report. 
I will send another e-mail confirming date of the meeting so you can attend if you 
wish to. 
If you do have any questions please do not hesitate to ask. 
Objector  17.10.2018 
Good morning  
Thank you for your email and for giving me the opportunity to explain my objections 
to the current plan, especially as the date had passed. 
I do think the yellow lines are necessary but to only come round the corner a short 
distance onto Station Road, the problem is the parking at the very end of Lowry Drive 
which makes it difficult and dangerous to turn either into or out of Lowry Drive, there 
are no parking issues on station road and the current proposed plan would create 
parking difficulties for both my business and the business at 192 Station Road, 
however the business on the corner of Station Road and Lowry Drive does not open 
until 4.30pm so any parking restriction which comes a short distance onto Station 
Road I believe would not have an adverse affect on that business 
Regards 
Response  sent by e -mail on 05.09.2018  
Good Morning, 
Thank you for your e-mail. I will include your objection in the report. 
Kind regards, 
 
 
 

Page 117



COMMENT 
 

E-mail sent on 03.09.2018  
Good Afternoon, 
 
I am contacting you regarding double yellow lines which are proposed at the junction 
Station Road / Lowry Drive. Can you please advise what days & times your nursery 
is open? 
 
Kind regards, 
Comment – sent on 03.09.2018  
Hi,  
 
We open mon-fri 7-7pm. Can I ask why? 
E-mail sent on 03.09.2018  
Hi, 
 
There is an advertised proposal to provide a junction protection (double yellows) at 
the junction Station Road/Lowry Drive. Details were posted on site (lamp post), via 
letter and you can check it also online at the link below. I am looking on other 
possibilities to provide better visibility at the above mentioned junction. 
 
If you have other concerns about traffic flow please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Kind regards, 
Comment – sent on 03.09.2018  
Hi,  
 
I think this would be great, so many people in the community park here and it is so 
dangerous. 
 

Page 118



 1

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

ITEM NO. 

 
 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
 

TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 
 

1st Nov 2018 
 

 
CITY OF SALFORD (ROOKE STREET, THORP STREET, LANSDALE STREET 

AND GILBERT STREET) (ONE WAY TRAFFIC AND ONE WAY TRAFFIC 
EXCEPT CYCLES) ORDER 2018 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the contents of 
this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a decision to: 
 
Approve the order for ‘One Way- Except Cycles’ contraflow restriction on Rooke Street and 
Thorp Street and One Way on Lansdale Street and Gilbert Street as advertised and implement 
accordingly.

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
This scheme comprises the introduction of a permanent Traffic Regulation Order and has 
been designed following a request from United Utilities after liaison with Urban Vision 
following the completion of major waste water infrastructure work is the area. 
 
A temporary restriction has been in place since 2014 which was devised to assist safe access 
for construction vehicles; this consists of one way operation of a number of streets in the area. 
Even though the temporary Order has lapsed, the signs and road markings remain in place 
with the vast majority of drivers observing the restrictions. 
 
At the request of Urban Vision, United Utilities undertook a consultation exercise during 
which the majority of residents in the area affected by the temporary restrictions were 
supportive of retaining the temporary arrangement as they considered it removed the 
problematic ‘rat running’ traffic that the area experienced before the restrictions were 
introduced. 
 

Page 119

Agenda Item 7



 2

TMU members have been formally consulted on the proposals for a permanent One Way 
Traffic Regulation Order on 6th November 2017 and there were no objections from 
emergency services or local councillors. 
 
Comments were received from the City Council’s Infrastructure Team within which a request 
for the introduction of contraflow operation for cycles on Rooke Street and Thorp Street One 
way system was made to promote cycle penetration of the area.  
 
All comments have been reviewed and any reasonable and justified amendments to proposals 
have been made in response, prior to legal advertising. 
 
The TRO was advertised on 2nd August 2018 for 21 days, during which time one objection 
was received. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As part of the scheme to improve the waste water network sewers, in part comprising major 
infrastructure works on land at Reginald Road, adjacent to the M60 Motorway, United 
Utilities applied for a temporary TRO to provide safe and suitable access to the site for 
construction vehicles during the work. This temporary TRO was introduced in May 2014 and 
was devised to both manage the access and egress of the construction traffic as well as 
managing local traffic movements near the construction site. This arrangement was also 
introduced to reduce rat running traffic, improve the environment as well as improving safety 
for residents.  
 
Following completion of the construction work, in liaison with Urban Vision, United Utilities 
undertook a public consultation exercise which included the properties in Rooke Street, Thorp 
Street, Lansdale Street and Gilbert Street. 75% of the responses were in support of the 
proposal to keep the temporary arrangements as a permanent restriction. Some of the 
responses to the consultation suggested that prior to the temporary one way system being 
introduced there was a lot of traffic cutting through the residential area during peak periods 
and that the one way system has made the local roads a much quieter and safer place to live. 
 
A subsequent request has been made by United Utilities to introduce a permanent TRO which 
reflects the temporary arrangements and is in line with the agreement of the majority of 
residents who responded to the consultation. 
 
The current proposal amends the existing temporary arrangement with the introduction of 
contraflow cycle operation on Rooke Street and Thorp Street, to enable safer and more direct 
cycle connections through the residential area and to neighbouring areas. These changes have 
been requested for consideration by the Councils Infrastructure Team. 
 
The collision data for the area has been considered, with only one collision recorded at the 
junction of Rooke Street and Liverpool Road in 2013, prior to the introduction of the 
temporary arrangements. This collision involved a motor scooter turning right from Rooke 
Street. There have been no recorded collisions in the area since the introduction of the 
temporary restrictions. 
  

Page 120



 3

This proposal consists of a permanent Traffic Regulation Order ‘One Way- Except cycles’ 
restriction on Rooke Street and Thorp Street, with ‘One Way’ (as existing) on Lansdale Street 
and Gilbert Street. The proposals are detailed on the attached plan within appendix B.  
 
It is proposed to make the existing temporary arrangement of ‘One-Way’ on Rooke Street, 
Lansdale Street, Gilbert Street and Thorp Street, Barton permanent as below: 
 

‘One-way’ on  
Lansdale Street from its junction with Liverpool Road to its junction with Reginald 
Road; 
Gilbert Street from its junction with Liverpool Road to its junction with Reginald 
Road; 
 
‘One-Way except cycles’ on 
Rooke Street from its junctions with Liverpool Road to its junction with Reginald 
Street; 
Thorp Street from its junctions with Liverpool Road to its junction with Harrison 
Street. 
 

 
CONSIDERATION OF OBJECTION: 
 
The full letter of objection is contained as appendix C to this report. The objection letter 
reiterates concerns that were raised during the consideration of the temporary scheme and 
have been submitted as supporting documents for the permanent scheme. However, the key 
issues raised in relation to the current proposals are summarised and considered within the 
table below: 
 
I was also assured by Councillor ___ that 
further consultation would take place before 
anything was made permanent 

Urban Vision has carried out the consultation 
that is statutorily required when considering a 
Traffic Regulation Order. In this case, this 
consisted of site notices, press advertisements 
and details placed upon the Councils website. 
This consultation has resulted in the 
submission of this objection to the proposal. 

I see that cycles will be allowed to travel both 
ways in the proposed outline. There are 
numerous motorbikes and motor scooters 
travelling up and down the street regularly. 
Many vehicles ignore the One Way system 
anyway. It almost seems that only the 
residents of Rooke Street observe the signs 

Contraflow cycling is an accepted practice of 
enabling convenient cycle links to be 
delivered or maintained. The ability for 
cyclists to travel contraflow along Rooke 
Street, enables them to avoid busy sections of 
Liverpool Road, when cycling from the local 
and wider residential area 
Thorpe Street is also appropriate for 
contraflow cycling as it enables cyclist to 
cross Liverpool Road to Schofield Road, 
which then provides access to the Port 
Salford Greenway off road cycle network. 
Other vehicles ignoring the restriction and 
signage can face prosecution by Greater 
Manchester Police and these incidences 

Page 121



 4

should be reported to them on 101.    
The culprits will continue to use the street 
despite the signage. Only a camera at the 
Liverpool Road end of the street near the 
phone box will capture these people. 

The Council do not have the power to carry 
out camera enforcement of these types of 
offences under the existing arrangements 
within the Traffic Management Act. 

 
The objector will be invited to the Traffic Advisory Panel meeting 
 

  
DETAILS: 
Appendix 

A. Legal schedule. 
B. Site Notice & Drawings detailing the proposal. 
C. Redacted letter of objection. 

 
Appendix: A 
SCHEDULE: 1- One Way Traffic 
 
Column 1 
Length of road 

Column 2 
Direction 

Lansdale Street South bound, from its junction with Liverpool Road to its junction 
with Reginald Street.  

Gilbert Street South bound, from its junction with Liverpool Road to its junction 
with Reginald Street.  

 
SCHEDULE 2- One Way Traffic except Cycles 
 
Column 1 
Length of road 
 

Column 2 
Direction 

Rooke Street South bound, from its junction with Liverpool Road to its junction 
with Reginald Street. 
 

Thorp Street South bound, from its junction with Liverpool Road to its junction 
with Harrison Street.  

 
Appendix: B & C is attached to the TAP report. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the objection to the proposal be over ruled and that the proposed one-
way will keep the traffic flow in this residential area controlled in the same manner it has 
been since 2014. This has reduced the rat running issues that were an issue pre 2014, making 
the local environment quieter and safer with no recorded collisions occurring since the 
introduction of the temporary scheme. 
 
The contra flow cycle facility on Rooke Street and Thorpe Street provides improved access 
for cyclists in the area. 

Page 122



 5

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Local Transport Plan 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
 
A one way traffic order was considered to be the most feasible option to manage traffic flow 
in the area during extensive waste water improvement works. The proposal to make this a 
permanent arrangement follows consultations with the residents in the area. 
 
Following TMU consultations, an exemption for cyclists on Rooke Street and Thorp Street 
has been included to improve cycling links. Appropriate road markings and traffic signs will 
be placed to inform road users of the restrictions. 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: None 
 
The One-Way and contraflow cycle facility will be marked out in accordance with the Traffic 
Signs manual and Traffic  Sign Regulations and General Directions.  
 
Implementation of the restrictions will continue the reduced levels of rat running traffic in this 
residential area, contributing to a quieter and safer residential environment. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A 
 
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the execution of 
works, the Council must comply with the requirements of public procurement regulations and 
its Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) failing which the decision may be subject to legal 
challenge. 
 
The report seeks approval for the instruction of Urban Vision Partnership Limited to 
introduce a traffic regulation order at Rooke Street and neighbouring streets as detailed in the 
report. In that regard, the Council will effectively appoint Urban Vision under the terms of the 
exclusivity arrangement with them contained in the Development Services Partnership 
Agreement. In any event, the value of the work does not exceed £10,000, for which CSO’s 
provide that an informal written quotation from 1 (or more) suitable person(s) or firm(s) is 
compliant. 
 
A Traffic Regulation Order will be required to introduce the one way operation. This should 
not give rise to any particular legal implications provided the works and procedures are 
carried out in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements, which would include the 
consideration of any objections to the proposed TRO.

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   
 
The temporary TRO, introduced in 2014, has been lapsed and the cost of the proposed 
permanent TRO for the scheme will be met by United Utilities.  

Page 123



 6

 
The works to amend the scheme to allow contra flow cycling, as detailed within this report, 
will be funded from the Highways Block 3 Capital allocation for Made to Move Development 
Schemes, in the  2018/19 financial year. 
 
Expenditure code: D00419 & D0276

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Not Received any comments. 

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Yogeshwari Patel         TEL NO: 0161 779 4857 
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Barton, Eccles. 

Page 124



APPENDIX -B TRO 2127 ROOKE STREET   SITE NOTICE AND DRAWING 

 

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 

 

ITEM NO. 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

 

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 

1
st 

November 2018 

 
 

The Council of The City of Salford Proposes to Make The City of Salford (Rooke Street, 

Thorp Street, Lansdale Street and Gilbert Street, Eccles) (One Way Traffic and One 

Way Traffic Except Cycles) Order 2018 

 
 

TRO Ref 2127 for the Rooke Street and other streets was legally advertised on 2
nd

 August 

2018 for 21 days. 

 

TRO published on the public notices section of the website (as per the link below). 

 

https://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-orders/rooke-street-

lansdale-street-gilbert-street-and-thorp-street/ 

 

Plan of the proposal and site notice is attached. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 125



APPENDIX -B TRO 2127 ROOKE STREET   SITE NOTICE AND DRAWING 

 

Notice is hereby given that 
 

The Council of the City of Salford proposes to make the CITY OF SALFORD (ROOKE 

STREET, THORP STREET, LANSDALE STREET AND GILBERT STREET, ECCLES) 

(ONE WAY TRAFFIC AND ONE WAY TRAFFIC EXCEPT CYCLES) ORDER 2018  

under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.  

 

The effect of the Order will be to introduce:  

One Way Traffic-  

(i) Lansdale Street - South bound, from its junction with Liverpool Road to its junction 

with Reginald Street. 

(ii) Gilbert Street - South bound, from its junction with Liverpool Road to its junction 

with Reginald Street.  

 

One Way Traffic Except Cycles-  

(i) Rooke Street - South bound, from its junction with Liverpool Road to its junction 

with Reginald Street. 

(ii) Thorp Street- South bound, from its junction with Liverpool Road to its junction with 

Harrison Street. 

 

Existing Orders are to be amended so as to be consistent with proposals.  

 

A copy of the proposed Order, a plan of the area and statement of the Council's reasons for 

proposing to make the Order may be examined at Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Rd, Swinton, 

M27 5AS, 8.30am-4.30pm Mon-Fri.  

 

Details can be viewed online at www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-

orders/.  

 

If you wish to object to the proposed Order you should send the grounds of your objection in 

writing to phlegal@manchester.gov.uk or  

 

PO BOX 532, TOWN HALL, MANCHESTER, M60 2LA, by 24 August 2018  

 

Quoting ref L/TGA/OUT1093/646  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated: 2 August 2018 Ben Dolan, Strategic Director Place.  

Page 126



APPENDIX -B TRO 2127 ROOKE STREET   SITE NOTICE AND DRAWING 

 

 

Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 4th October 2018.
	4 Chorley Road, Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street, Swinton.
	Report
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	5 Yew Street and Norfolk Street, Salford.
	6 Lynton Road, Lowry Drive and Station Road, Pendlebury.
	7 Rooke Street, Thorp Street, Lansdale Street and Gilbert Street, Eccles.
	Report
	Appendix B Notice and Plan
	Appendix C Objections


